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Call to Order – Mayor Rod Mann
Invocation – Council Member Brian Braithwaite
Pledge of Allegiance – Council Member Ed Dennis
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Rod Mann as a work session at 6:10 p.m. The meeting agenda was
posted on the Utah State Public Meeting Website at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. The prayer was offered
by Council Member Brian Braithwaite and those assembled were led in the Pledge of Allegiance by Council
Member Ed Dennis.

Discussion and review of the fiscal sustainability model prepared by Lewis Young Robertson
and Burningham including spending priorities.
City Administrator Nathan Crane oriented the Council with an update to the Financial Sustainability Plan and a
brief overview of what had already been done. In February, the City Council was presented with a preliminary
draft model, which showed a deficit of $1.6 million in the first year, and $8 million by year five. The Council had
requested that a work session be held to discuss those expenditures in detail. Since the previous discussion on this
item, a few things had changed, including an increase in expenditures for the Lone Peak Safety District,

subsequent cuts made by the City, and the near finalization of the FY 19/20 Budget. This updated information
would be put into the model and new projections made. The next steps in the process would be to compare
scenarios and the City Council should discuss what scenarios they would like to see from Lewis Young Robertson
and Burningham. They had also decided to estimate the cost per ERU for the General Fund based on the current
land use, future land use, and cost benefits. This estimate would give the City a number to apply to any type of
development that would come into the city. City Administrator Crane noted that there would be a work session
to present the final model and scenarios on June 12, 2018.
In response to a question from Mayor Mann, City Administrator Crane explained that State Revenue and Class C
Road Funds were included in the model.
City Administrator Crane continued by stating that staff did not believe that the study included everything that
the City has or needs. Their intent was to maintain the existing level of service, which they may or may not
accomplish in all areas. Staff’s goal with the meeting was to help the Council understand proposed expenditures
and the timing of those expenses. The Council could also discuss expenditures that are not listed that should be
included. Staff would present the expenditures by department.
Community Events and Recorder
Assistant City Administrator Erin Wells stated that staff had heard from residents that they would like the City to
expand the number of events they do, as well as, offer senior citizen activities. Staff did not have any hard data
to support the request, however, it was something they continually saw in the annual survey. If this was something
the City Council wanted to do, staff provided an estimated cost for the increase in salary and benefits for an Event
Planner and additional funds for the actual events. This was classified as a “low urgency level” priority.
Council Member Ed Dennis said that he would classify events as a “want” rather than a “need”, and Assistant
City Administrator Wells agreed. Administrator Crane explained that the City Council could remove the item.
Assistant City Administrator Wells explained that the costs under Recorder had to do with elections. Every other
year, the City was in charge of municipal elections, which had consistently been close to $30,000. It was therefore,
labeled as a “high urgency level” expenditure because the City would be incurring the expense. On the off years,
the City budgets $1,000 in case they have a need for extra flyers or something of that nature.
Council Member Ed Dennis voiced concern with the expense as listed, because it seemed to be an incremental
cost. Assistant City Administrator Wells assured him that the cost would not be increasing annually, and Lewis
Young Robertson and Burningham was aware of that. Mayor Mann added that the expenditure was not new, it
was simply listed for the Council’s information because it was a unique expense.
Council Member Kurt Ostler wondered if they should budget $15,000 every year and allow it to carry over to the
election year rather than changing the amount every year. Assistant City Administrator Wells responded that they
would ask Lewis Young Robertson and Burningham to comment on that at the work session.
Administration
Assistant City Administrator Erin Wells explained of a new expenditure related to IT projects. The City’s IT
providers had recommended projects that would bring the City technology more current, including server
upgrades, and new security cameras. The current systems were out-of-date and malfunctioning. Staff
recommended adding $10,000 to the IT budget to help the City catch up on these much-needed items.
Council Member Brian Braithwaite suggested that the IT projects be labeled as a “high urgency level”. Assistant
City Administrator Wells agreed and commented that the City system had recently been hacked several times.
Mayor Mann agreed that technology should be a priority because it was changing so rapidly. He also commented

that the city could easily spend more than $10,000 on these projects. Council Member Brian Braithwaite agreed
and suggested that the Council consider increasing the amount.
Parks and Open Space
Public Works Operations and Maintenance Director Justin Parduhn explained that the cemetery fence was in dire
need of repair. A few years ago, staff had put the project out for bid but the numbers may no longer be accurate.
He suggested that the City Council could choose to change the type of fencing that currently existed or they could
choose to have no fencing at all.
Mayor Mann asked why the fencing deteriorated so quickly, and Director Parduhn explained that the steel was
not treated properly, so the weather and salt from the road ate the material away quickly. Replacing the fence
would be a large expense for the City.
Council Member Ed Dennis asked for clarification on where the funding would come from for the project, and
Mr. Parduhn said that it would come from the General Fund and the Perpetual Care Fund, and Lewis Young
Robertson and Burningham would be made aware of that.
Director Parduhn said that they were hoping to get an additional four years out of the fence before replacing it.
City Administrator Crane commented that they would save funds for three years and replace the fencing in the
year 2020. Council Member Brian Braithwaite recommended that the Council consider different fencing types,
but he did not want to leave the cemetery unfenced. Director Parduhn confirmed that staff would do some research
and present a few options to the Council.
Director Parduhn continued by addressing the potential for a seasonal employee hourly rate increase. He explained
that it had been difficult to bring in seasonal employees because of the low hourly rate currently offered. During
the summer months they were able to hire high school students, but it was difficult to find employees for the rest
of the year.
Council Member Brian Braithwaite suggested reaching out to retired individuals who would be able to steer a
riding mower. Director Parduhn mentioned that they had considered that and were still trying to find the best way
to advertise. He asked the City Council to spread the word to any individuals they knew who might be interested.
Council Member Ed Dennis noted that the spreadsheet indicated that the increase would not be needed until the
year 2020. Director Parduhn explained that they currently hadn’t reached their maximum number of employees
and they were able to use budget funds to pay the seasonal employees a little more. They currently pay $11 per
hour but may need to increase that to $12.50 next year.
Staff noted that they were still considering outsourcing park maintenance. If that happened, the request would be
obsolete.
Director Parduhn continued by addressing maintenance equipment, particularly two large mowers that the City
owns. They intended to set aside $17,500 for the next four years to save up the money necessary to replace them.
Mayor Mann said that this cost could also be mitigated if the City were to outsource park maintenance. Director
Parduhn said that playground equipment also needed to be replaced because some of the existing equipment was
failing and becoming a safety hazard. The playgrounds had about a ten-year lifespan. Staff calculated a total for
all fourteen playgrounds and divided that expense over the next four years. The first playground would be replaced
in 2023. Council Member Brian Braithwaite asked staff to consider adding or replacing trees in the parks, as well.
He encouraged them to get input from residents about where trees would be most beneficial, and the residents
may help cover the cost as they did with the pavilion at Beacon Hills.

Director Parduhn then explained that Streets and Roads had a full-time employee split between storm water and
roads, and they were looking at other options to cover the responsibilities. The options included hiring another
company, or having the City purchase their own vac truck and do the work in-house. Council Member Brian
Braithwaite commented that Highland City gets a percentage of the vac truck owned by the Timpanogos Special
Services District (TSSD), and that percentage was getting smaller as other cities in the district got bigger which
was having an impact on the City.
NOTE: Council Member Tim Irwin arrived at 6:55 PM.
Director Parduhn said that they had also received a lot of requests for flashing speed limit signs. If the Council
felt that was important, they could continue to fund them. The last sign installed in the City was paid for by a
developer. Council Member Brian Braithwaite asked if the signs had been effective and Director Parduhn
responded that staff did not have a lot of data to prove the results either way.
NOTE: Council Member Scott Smith arrived at 6:58 PM.
Police Chief Gwilliam felt that the flashing speed limit signs had a calming effect, and they had issued fewer
citations in the areas where signs had been installed.
Director Parduhn stated that the City’s snow plow trucks also needed to be replaced. They had just replaced two,
and they would eventually need to replace the other four.
City Engineer Todd Trane commented on the Murdock Connector and how much it would take to fund the project.
The total cost of the connector would be $2.4 million but that would be funded by Lehi, Highland, and Utah
County. Staff was looking into funding Highland’s portion of that cost over two years.
Library
City Administrator Nathan Crane commented that the computer replacement at the library was considered an
ongoing expense rather than a capital expense. That expense had not been included in the budget for the upcoming
year because the library was funding that through a different revenue source this year.
Fire and Police
City Administrator Crane reported that the Fire Department would be hiring two new employees in 2020 and
2024, and the City’s portion of that cost was listed in the spreadsheet. The line item entitled Fire Budget was the
City’s cost for fire services.
Council Member Kurt Ostler noted that they had approved staffing of three employees at each of the three stations.
City Administrator Crane confirmed and commented that the Fire Chief would like to have four employees at
each station. The numbers listed in the spreadsheet were estimated high rather than low. The Fire Department had
also been working to identify the needs of the Highland Fire Station, and one need was an exhaust system. The
City would be responsible for the cost of anything done to the building because it belongs to Highland City.
City Administrator Crane briefly mentioned the need to replace police vehicles and get updated security cameras
at the library book drop.

Mayor Mann called for a motion to adjourn the work session.

Council Member Brian Braithwaite MOVED to adjourn the work session and Council Member Ed Dennis
SECONDED the motion. All voted yes and the motion passed unanimously.
The meeting adjourned at 7:08 PM.

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Rod Mann as a regular session at 7:08 p.m.
Time has been set aside for the public to express their ideas, concerns, and comments. (Please
limit comments to three minutes per person. Please state your name and address.)
Yvonne Carter, a resident, expressed great concern about the Patterson Development. She had attended the
neighborhood meeting where the plan was presented last Wednesday. Mrs. Carter said that she previously
resided in Murray and Sandy and she had seen a lot of changes in those areas. When all of those changes
were happening in Sandy, the Mayor told the residents that increased commercial would help to lower taxes,
but she did not believe it helped. She also felt there was a deterioration in services with increased
development. Mrs. Carter likes Highland because she felt it was unique and primarily a community of
families rather than commercial areas. She also enjoyed the larger lots and the open feel of the community.
She felt that the Patterson Development would be right in the middle of the City and the museum was not
likely to happen, unless someone funded it. She was also concerned about parking and the potential for the
entire street to become a commercial center if the development went through. She urged the Council to keep
Highland unique and not allow the development.
Leslie Jarrett, a resident on 6000 West, was concerned about the direction Highland was going with
development in general and expressed that many of her neighbors felt the same way. She encouraged the
Council to speak with as many residents as they could to get a better feel of what the community wanted.
She believed the reason they love Highland so much was because it’s different from any other community;
with larger lots and open space. Mrs. Jarrett commented that newer developments did not feel like Highland.
She felt that if all of the residential lots were larger there would be no need for public open space which was
a great expense for the City. Mrs. Jarrett encouraged the City Council to follow the existing Master Plan and
maintain the R-1-40 zoning as much as possible. She also spoke about how higher density developments
cause parking and traffic issues and take a toll on City services. She believed that residents were not interested
in R-1-20 zoning.
Cody Yeck, a resident, spoke of the development behind Ridgeline Elementary, which she fought against
last year. That property had since changed hands and the new developer was putting in cookie cutter homes.
She believed there was nothing original or unique about the development. Mrs. Yeck was worried that the
Patterson Development would follow the same scenario. She encouraged the City Council to clearly
communicate what they do and do not want to see on the property, in the case that the property were to
change hands.
Wade Miller, a resident, reported that he came to Highland for the open spaces and friendly atmosphere. He
hoped that the Council would follow the Master Plan that had already been adopted and refuse high density
developments.

a.
John Thomas oriented the City Council regarding the Tree Commission purpose and goals. Mr. Thomas had
been on the Commission for some time and spent the last few years as Chair, although the Commission had
been less productive than he had hoped. The Commission should have seven members, including one
member of the City Council. Currently, they only had five members. The Commission’s purpose was to make
recommendations to the City Council regarding budgetary needs and to the City Forester relating to planting,
pruning, spraying, removing, and irrigating of public trees. Mr. Thomas reported that their goal was to
contribute to the Master Plan and develop a Master Forestry Plan that would include an inventory of every
tree and their condition. They also wanted to create some educational programs. Mr. Thomas briefly spoke
about the Arbor Day sale sponsored by the Tree Commission. Their greatest challenge had been funding. In
the past, they had commission members that were experienced in grant writing and fund raising but the
members right now were simply enthusiasts. Mr. Thomas spoke briefly about the benefits of focusing on and
preserving a natural environment.
Council Member Brian Braithwaite thanked Mr. Thomas for his service and asked if anyone from the Council
had been assigned to the Tree Commission. Mayor Mann responded that he had not assigned anyone. Council
Member Brian Braithwaite suggested that the Commission set specific goals and share them with the Council
so that they could assist them. Regarding the budget, he explained that items that would bring more value to
the community were more likely to receive funding. He also felt that it would be wise to get an advisor for
fund raising.
Council Member Ed Dennis advised Mr. Thomas to utilize the Highland Foundation for Parks and Trees.
Council Member Scott L. Smith suggested that they come up with a water conservation plan and incorporate
xeriscaping into the City.

b.
City Auditor Steve Rowley presented a training regarding governmental account practices, including the
following three topics:
•
•
•

Government-wide statements vs. City fund level statements
Fund Balance vs. Cash
The 25% General Fund Balance limitation

Mr. Rowley explained that the government-wide statements and the fund level statements show the same
underlying transactions of the City, just in different formats. The fund level statements show balances and
cash that are available to spend, and the government-wide statements include all of the City’s assets and
debts.
Council Member Kurt Ostler asked why the City assets depreciate, and Mr. Rowley gave the example of a
utility sewer line, which would depreciate over its lifetime. If the City was setting the utility rates to recoup
that depreciation expense, then they were essentially trying to fund the replacement of those assets going
forward. The depreciation was included to help the City make decisions for the future.
Mr. Rowley then showed an income statement for the City and explained the format and breakdown.
NOTE: Council member Ed Dennis left the meeting at 7:40 PM

Mr. Rowley continued by showing the governmental funds, which the Council was used to looking at when
the Finance Director prepares documents for them. These were basically on a cash basis, with a focus on a
near term. He said that the financials include reconciliation sheets which show the differences between the
fund level statements and the governmental statements.
There was a brief discussion about compensated absences and where that was shown. Council Member Brian
Braithwaite said that an unfunded expense did not make sense for any organization and asked how the City
should be handling that. Mr. Rowley said that they could look at the government-wide statement which
included the long-term liabilities. All of the information regarding hours accumulated was being tracked by
the Finance Director. Council Member Brian Braithwaite stated that the problem was not keeping track of
the hours, it was setting aside the money for the compensation. Mr. Rowley referred to the schedule and
explained how those monies were already being accrued. The funds did not impact the 25% rule.
NOTE: Council Member Ed Dennis returned to the meeting at 7:58 PM.
Mr. Rowley continued the presentation by addressing the differences between the fund balance and cash,
which were generally not the same amount. He also provided some examples.
He explained that the fund balance was split up into five categories: Non-spendable, Restricted, Committed,
Assigned, and Unassigned. The 25% rule meant that the funds could not exceed 25% of the unrestricted
General Fund revenues for that year. The City Council could choose to lower that percentage to something
like 20%, if they felt that was appropriate.
Council Member Scott L. Smith asked why the City could keep money in reserves for specific funds, such
as pressurized irrigation, and Mr. Rowley reiterated that the 25% rule only applied to the General Fund. The
Finance Director would be able to show them the fund balances for each fund.
Mr. Rowley briefly spoke about the benefits of having a fund balance available, particularly in times of
growth in the City.

c.
City Attorney Tim Merrill gave a presentation regarding open meetings and stated that he was required to
present the training annually. He provided a definition of a public body and explained why they were required
to have public meetings. Actions taken by the City Council were done openly to be transparent with the
public. A public meeting was a formal convening where a quorum was present and there were matters to
determine. Attorney Merrill briefly discussed noticing requirements and emphasized that items that were not
on the agenda could not be voted upon. He also explained what could be discussed in a closed session.
Attorney Merrill then addressed initiatives and referendums. The City Council Members were allowed to
campaign for or against, contribute money, etc., but they could not do so using a City email address. Their
official position should remain neutral, however, as a resident of the City, they could advocate for one side
or the other. There was a brief discussion regarding the ability of staff to provide factual information in the
City newsletter or on the City website.

Items on the consent agenda are of a routine nature or have been previously studied by the
City Council. They are intended to be acted upon in one motion. Council members may pull
items from consent if they would like them considered separately.

Regular City Council Meeting May 1, 2018
Council Member Ed Dennis MOVED to approve consent items a. approval of Meeting Minutes for May 1,
2018 as amended.
Council Member Tim Irwin SECONDED the motion.
The vote was recorded as follows:
Council Member Brian Braithwaite
Council Member Ed Dennis
Council Member Tim Irwin
Council Member Kurt Ostler
Council Member Scott L. Smith

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

The motion passed.

Brianne Ellison is requesting the disposal of open space property for the lots on the east side
of Jupiter Circle. City Council will hold a public hearing to determine if the property should
be disposed. The Council will take appropriate action.
City Administrator Nathan Crane presented the staff report regarding a request to dispose a piece of Cityowned open space property in the Highland Hills Subdivision. The property was roughly 1.42 acres in size.
He explained that the area sloped significantly between the homes and the trail, and there was a four-inch
pressurized irrigation line and a storm drain line in the area. There were poor soil conditions and concerns
about water runoff in the area as well. When the Highland Hills Subdivision was approved, the City built a
berm to help with erosion and to protect the lower homes from water runoff, but eventually they made the
decision to stop watering the area. If the property was sold to the resident, the pressurized irrigation line
would have to be relocated. Administrator Crane reported that the applicant obtained the required number of
signatures from the Highland Hills residents.
Council Member Ed Dennis asked if the existing trial would be impacted by the request, and Administrator
Crane responded that it would not. Staff also recommended that the applicant put in some sort of delineation
at the property line if the property were sold.
Mayor Mann opened the public hearing at 8:41 PM and called for any citizens who would like to speak
on the item to come to the podium and state their name for the record.
Citizen Comments:
Brianne Ellison, the applicant, explained that she had come to the City in the past with concerns about the
weeds and trash in the area, which had become a fire hazard. When the subdivision was originally planned,
this area was supposed to be landscaped with grass and trees but things changed by the time the subdivision
was finished. No one uses the space in its current condition, and she wanted the option to beautify it and
allow her family to use it.
Nathan Ellison presented current photographs of the subject property.

Caleb Skidmore, a resident, said that he was petitioning to purchase the land on the other side of the trail,
and hoped that his application would not be affected by the decision tonight.
Brian Trampleasure, a resident, said that the builder of the subdivision provided a beautiful image of what
the area around the trail would look like but the City decided to leave the area as natural vegetation. It had
since turned into a weed pit and a fire hazard. The weeds were only mowed down when the residents
complained. If the area were grassed and maintained like open space, he would be happy. He commented
that the residents were not requesting to purchase the properties to increase their lot sizes. They simply
wanted to beautify the area.
Mayor Mann closed the public hearing at 8:49 PM
Council Member Ed Dennis commended the residents for bringing the issue forward. There were several
areas in the City where maintenance was difficult. He believed that this proposal was consistent with the
goals of the Open Space Committee to enhance the area overall.
Mayor Mann asked about the cost of relocating the line, and Public Works O&M Director Justin Parduhn said
that it would be approximately $10 to $12 per foot, plus the cost of materials. City Engineer Todd Trane
reported that he had asked the residents to bid the project.
Mrs. Ellison reported that she did receive two bids, and both came in around $10,000. The residents were
willing to pay the expense. She gave the bid information to City Engineer Trane.
Council Member Scott L. Smith commented on the condition of the area and said that it was difficult for the
City to maintain all of their open space properties. He felt that this request would be beneficial to the residents
and to the City. Regarding the pressurized irrigation line, he asked why the City would not leave it in its
current location and require an easement. City Engineer Trane explained that the irrigation main supplied
water for the nearby park and it was only buried about four feet deep. That could easily be punctured by a
fence or when gardening. The City would want the line on their own property.
Council Member Kurt Ostler asked why having grass and vegetation on the property would cause increase
water runoff. Director Parduhn explained that sprinklers would cause additional runoff. The soil was
essentially clay and the water did not absorb quickly. The conditions of approval included a requirement for
the residents to somehow retain water on their property.
Council Member Kurt Ostler expressed a concern for liability if the City chooses to sell and Attorney Merrill
said that they would sell the property in an “as is” condition and would be free from any liability.
Council Member Ed Dennis said that water runoff could find its way into the storm drains that run along the
trail, but Engineer Trane clarified that the existing storm drain was not designed to collect water, but to
transport water. Staff could look into changing them to collection boxes if the Council requested it.
Council Member Brian Braithwaite briefly commented on how different properties appeal to different people.
He gave the example of some residents enjoying natural vegetation and some considering it an eyesore.
When the City was presented the proposal, the developer provided a beautiful picture of a natural landscape,
and that appealed to them. Then the developer came in and pulled out the natural vegetation and the weeds
started to come in. The area did not turn out the way the developer had presented it. In his perspective, trails
and open space are for the benefit of the entire community, not just to those who live next to it. He had a
concern with pushing the fence too close to the trail, because it would disrupt the open space feel and the

view shed from the trail. Regarding water runoff, he explained that his primary concern was that any
subsequent owners would not be fully informed about the drainage issues and it could lead to flooding. This
issue needed to be mitigated today.
Council Member Scott L. Smith appreciated Council Member Brian Braithwaite’s concerns but he felt the
best solution to the existing problem was to allow the residents to maintain the area.
Council Member Tim Irwin MOVED that the City Council accept the findings and APPROVE resolution
R-2018-08 designating open space property for disposal property generally located in the Highland Hills
Subdivision.
Stipulations:
1. Prior to the relocation of the pressurized irrigation line and sprinklers, an irrigation plan shall be
prepared by the purchasers and approved by the City Engineer. The City Engineer shall also inspect
and approve the construction. Ten percent of the estimated cost of modifications, shall be provided as a
bond prior to construction. The bond shall be released upon final approval by the City Engineer.
2. The purchases shall be responsible for the cost of relocating the four inch pressurized irrigation line.
3. The maximum length of financing shall be XXXX.
4. All runoff shall be contained on the owners’ property.
Council Member Ed Dennis SECONDED the motion.
There was a discussion regarding the fencing and Council Member Brian Braithwaite suggested requiring
the fence be farther from the trail than the actual property line.
Council Member Kurt Ostler MOVED to amend the stipulations to have fencing 20 feet off the trail.
Brian Braithwaite seconded the motion.
Council Member Ed Dennis asked for clarification on the fencing concern. Mayor Mann suggested requiring
open fencing to preserve the view sheds. Council Member Irwin was not in favor of requiring fencing so far
off the trail, because he felt that it would take away the residents’ motivation to landscape and maintain the
property.
The vote for the amended motion was recorded as follows:
Council Member Brian Braithwaite Yes
Council Member Ed Dennis
No
Council Member Tim Irwin
No
Council Member Kurt Ostler
Yes
Council Member Scott L. Smith
No
The motion failed.
Attorney Merrill asked the Council to provide clarification on Stipulation 3 regarding the length of financing.
Council Member Ed Dennis suggested following what had been done historically, which was any cost
between $0.00 and $10,000 be financed for one year, anything between $10,001 and $20,000 be financed for
two years, and anything greater than $20,0001 be financed for three years.
There was a discussion regarding an engineering plan to mitigate the runoff concern, and Attorney Merrill
said that the Council could require a formal engineering plan, if they felt it was necessary. Council Member

Ed Dennis felt that it was the resident’s responsibility to contain their own water and the City would not be
liable.
Mrs. Ellison explained that landscape engineers had looked at the property and said that there would be no
more risk than what currently existed in the case of a rain storm. The engineers also felt the berm was overkill,
although she was willing to do it.
Council Member Tim Irwin explained that the resolution required that all water be contained on the owners’
property.
Council Member Tim Irwin MOVED that the City Council accept the findings and APPROVE resolution
R-2018-08 designating open space property for disposal property generally located in the Highland Hills
Subdivision.
Stipulations:
1. Prior to the relocation of the pressurized irrigation line and sprinklers, an irrigation plan shall be
prepared by the purchasers and approved by the City Engineer. The City Engineer shall also inspect
and approve the construction. Ten percent of the estimated cost of modifications, shall be provided as a
bond prior to construction. The bond shall be released upon final approval by the City Engineer.
2. The purchases shall be responsible for the cost of relocating the four-inch pressurized irrigation line.
3. The maximum length of financing shall be any costs from $0.00 to $10,000.00 would be financed for one
year; anything from $10,001 to $20,000 would be financed for two years; and anything greater than
$20,001 would be financed for three years.
4. All runoff shall be contained on the owners’ property.
Council Member Ed Dennis SECONDED the motion.
The vote for original motion was recorded as follows:
Council Member Brian Braithwaite No
Council Member Ed Dennis
Yes
Council Member Tim Irwin
Yes
Council Member Kurt Ostler
No
Council Member Scott L. Smith
Yes
The motion passed 3:2.

Darin Juncker of New Element Construction is requesting a rezone. City Council will hold a
public hearing and determine if the property located at 5959 W 10100 N should be rezoned
from R-1-40 to R-1-30. The Council will take appropriate action.
Council Member Tim Irwin MOVED that the City Council ADOPT ordinance O-2018-09 rezoning the
property from R-1-40 to R-1-30 based on the following findings and subject to three stipulations.
1. The preliminary and final plat shall conform to the concept plan date stamped May 10, 2018 except
as modified by these stipulations.

2. The preliminary and final plat shall meet all City Standards.
3. Road design shall meet all City Standards.
Council Member Brian Braithwaite SECONDED the motion.
Mayor Mann opened the public hearing at 9:30 PM and called for any citizens who would like to speak
on the item to come to the podium and state their name for the record.
Citizen Comments:
There were none.
Mayor Mann closed the public hearing at 9:30 PM
Council Member Ed Dennis asked if there was a resident present that was representing the group that filed
the referendum. He wanted a confirmation that the referendum would be withdrawn if the rezone to R-1-30
was approved.
Natalie Ball, the sponsor of the referendum, confirmed that she would withdraw the referendum if the Council
voted to zone the property R-1-30.
The vote was recorded as follows:
Council Member Brian Braithwaite
Council Member Ed Dennis
Council Member Tim Irwin
Council Member Kurt Ostler
Council Member Scott L. Smith

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

The motion passed unanimously.

City Council will consider adopting a resolution approving the Tentative Budget for Fiscal
Year 2018-2019 and set a date of June 5, 2018 for approval of the Final Budget for that fiscal
year. The Council will take appropriate action.
Mayor Mann commented that they would be approving the tentative budget tonight, and that budget could
change slightly before final adoption.
Finance Director Gary LeCheminant reviewed the budget assumptions, General Fund review summary, and
enterprise funds.
Council Member Scott L. Smith asked about the fund balances and Director LeCheminant reported the
numbers for culinary water, storm water, sewer, and pressurized irrigation. City Administrator Crane noted
that the utility rate study charge was included in the packet.
Council Member Scott L. Smith asked if the General Fund surplus included the Patterson property, and
Finance Director LeCheminant said that it was not. He explained that the surplus was being used for the salt

shed and the purchasing of new snow plows. They would see money for the property sale in the next fiscal
year.
Mayor Mann opened the public hearing at 9:44 PM and called for any citizens who would like to speak
on the item to come to the podium and state their name for the record.
Citizen Comments:
Natalie Ball, a resident, said that she was confused as to why the City was not charging full market value for
these open space properties when they were in such desperate need of money.
Council Member Ed Dennis explained that property value diminishes the farther back you go in a property.
The City did have appraisals done, and the average was that the property would be $1 per square foot for the
back portion of the property. The City was charging a premium at $1.40 per square foot.
Council Member Kurt Ostler agreed with Mrs. Ball that this was not a fair market value.
Mayor Mann said that the decision to charge $1.40 per square foot was made several years ago, and he would
be willing to explain that process to her another time. Mrs. Ball felt that it was not good practice to use
something that was decided three years ago.
The Council continued to discuss the cost and fair market value.
Mayor Mann closed the public hearing 9:50 PM
Council Member Ed Dennis MOVED that the City Council ADOPT resolution R-2018-09 approving the
Tentative Budget for Fiscal Year 2018-2019 and set a date of June 5, 2018 for approval of the Final Budget.
Council Member Scott L. Smith SECONDED the motion.
The vote was recorded as follows:
Council Member Brian Braithwaite
Council Member Ed Dennis
Council Member Tim Irwin
Council Member Kurt Ostler
Council Member Scott L. Smith

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

The motion passed unanimously.

City Council will consider the approval of additions to the firework and open fire restrictions.
The Council will take appropriate action.
Assistant City Administrator Erin Wells explained that State Legislature had recently changed the law to
narrow the dates of when fireworks were allowed and expanded the areas that fireworks could be banned.
The proposed resolution would include these new areas and dates. She presented a map that identified the
banned areas in the City. Also included in the resolution was a ban on open fires, which was a
recommendation from Chief Gwilliam. Assuming this was approved, staff would work with Utah County to
publish a county-wide map showing areas where fireworks were banned, and that map would be posted on

the website and the City’s social media pages. All firework retailers would be required to display the map as
well.
Council Member Brian Braithwaite said that the code currently allowed the burning of trees and weeds, with
permit, until the end of May, however this resolution would go into effect on May 16th. He suggested
changing the date to May 31st to be consistent with the burning timeframe.
There was a brief discussion about banning fireworks near open construction sites because of the fire hazard,
and Assistant City Administrator Wells explained that the state statute regulates where they can prohibit
fireworks.
Council Member Scott L. Smith asked if they would be posting signage in the banned areas, and how it
would be enforced. The response was that city had not planned for signage because of the cost. Enforcement
was the responsibility of the police department. City Administrator Nathan Crane suggested putting up signs
similar to campaign signs. These would be inexpensive to make and staff could put them up in prohibited
areas. The City Council was favorable of the idea. Assistant City Administrator Wells also suggested putting
a notice on the City’s flashing sign directing residents to the City website.
Council Member Brian Braithwaite reiterated that the resolution did not include a termination date for the
fire ban. There was also a timeframe in the fall where burns were allowed and the resolution would conflict
with that. Assistant City Administrator Wells suggested removing Section 2 of the resolution regarding the
fire ban, and they could bring that back before the City Council once they had more information about the
burn seasons.
Council Member Brian Braithwaite MOVED that the City Council ADOPT resolution R-2018-10 restricting
fireworks and remove Section 2 in the resolution to no longer restrict open burn.
Council Member Ed Dennis SECONDED the motion.
The vote was recorded as follows:
Council Member Brian Braithwaite
Council Member Ed Dennis
Council Member Tim Irwin
Council Member Kurt Ostler
Council Member Scott L. Smith

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

The motion passed unanimously.

City Council will consider approving an amendment to the municipal parks and cemetery code
and adopt a resolution designating Canyon Oaks Park as a campground and set a fee schedule
for campground rentals. The Council will take appropriate action.
Assistant City Administrator Erin Wells explained that the Canyon Oaks campground had gone through
several repairs and upgrades and was now ready to be rented out. The campground included one fire pit, two
picnic tables, and a large area for tents. There was a permanent restroom in the parking lot. Included in the
packet was the proposed fee schedule. Staff proposed beginning rentals on June 1, 2018.

Council Member Kurt Ostler reminded staff that there was an existing sign in the parking lot that prohibited
overnight parking. He suggested that the sign be removed. He asked about the older picnic table stands at the
campground and Director Parduhn said that staff already had materials ready but they were waiting for an
Eagle Scout to complete the project.
Assistant City Administrator Wells explained that the rate would be $25 for a 24-hour use for residents and
$50 for non-residents. She said that this was consistent with surrounding city rates.
Council Member Tim Irwin MOVED that the City Council approve the amended Parks and Cemetery
Ordinance O-2018-10.
Council Member Brian Braithwaite SECONDED the motion.
The vote was recorded as follows:
Council Member Brian Braithwaite
Council Member Ed Dennis
Council Member Tim Irwin
Council Member Kurt Ostler
Council Member Scott L. Smith
The motion passed unanimously.

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

Council Member Tim Irwin MOVED that the City Council approve Resolution R-2018-11 Designating
Canyon Oaks Park as a Campground and Adopting Campground Rental Fees.
Council Member Scott L. Smith SECONDED the motion.
The vote was recorded as follows:
Council Member Brian Braithwaite
Council Member Ed Dennis
Council Member Tim Irwin
Council Member Kurt Ostler
Council Member Scott L. Smith
The motion passed unanimously.

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

City Council will consider the approval of a franchise agreement with Verizon. The Council
will take appropriate action.
Attorney Merrill presented the request from Verizon Wireless for a franchise agreement. This agreement
would assure that Verizon complies with City ordinances and they would make the City aware of any projects
they are doing within City limits. He noted that the agreement was with Verizon but it would be done through
a wholly-owned subsidiary called MCI Metro Access Transmission Services Corp. He confirmed that the
agreement does protect the City against new poles going up.
Council Member Brian Braithwaite MOVED that the City Council Approve the Franchise Agreement with
MCI Metro Access Transmission Services Corp.
Council Member Scott L. Smith SECONDED the motion.
The vote was recorded as follows:
Council Member Brian Braithwaite Yes
Council Member Ed Dennis
Yes

Council Member Tim Irwin
Council Member Kurt Ostler
Council Member Scott L. Smith
The motion passed unanimously.

Yes
Yes
Yes

City Recorder Cindy Quick provided information about cemeteries with an infant section and how the
administration of burials were handled. She oriented the Council with comparisons and costs from other
cities. She asked the Council if they felt that Highland should create an infant section or simply continue to
allow infants to be buried under the headstone.
The City Council directed staff to move forward with an infant section and bring back a proposal at a future
date.
Mayor Mann and Council Member Kurt Ostler reported on the recent Developmental Center Board meeting.
It was confirmed that the Developmental Center would not be doing a joint venture and they would not be
putting the property out for an RFQ or RFP. They would be putting the property out to market. It was noted
that the road would be separate from the Developmental Center so they could expect to see a road next year.
Council Member Brian Braithwaite asked if the Council should lower the General Fund balance limit to 20%,
as previously discussed. Administrator Crane said that staff had already drafted the proposal and it would be
presented to the City Council on June 5th.

•
•

May 22 – Planning Commission, 7:00 pm
June 5 – City Council Meeting, 7:00 pm

•

May 20 – Nominations for Grand Marshal(s) due to Julie@HighlandCity.org

Council Member Scott L. Smith reported state legislature had changed special service districts so that the City
can no longer appoint members to those boards. He was currently a member of the North Pointe Solid Waste
Special Service District, and he was confused about the legislature that was passed. He asked Attorney Merrill
to review the information with him.

The Highland City Council may temporarily recess the City Council meeting to convene in a
closed session to discuss the character, professional competence, or physical or mental health
of an individual, pending or reasonable imminent litigation, and the purchase, exchange, or
lease of real property, as provided by Utah Code Annotated §52-4-205

At 10:32 PM Council Member Brian Braithwaite MOVED that the City Council recess to convene in a closed
session to discuss the character, professional competence, or physical or mental health of an individual as
provided by Utah Code Annotated§ 52-4-205.
Council Member Kurt Ostler SECONDED the motion.
The vote was recorded as follows:
Council Member Brian Braithwaite
Council Member Ed Dennis
Council Member Tim Irwin
Council Member Kurt Ostler
Council Member Scott L. Smith

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

The motion passed unanimously.

Council Member Ed Dennis MOVED to adjourn the City Council meeting and Council Member Brian Braithwaite
SECONDED the motion. All voted yes and the motion passed.
The meeting adjourned at 1:02 AM.
I, Cindy Quick, City Recorder of Highland City, hereby certify that the foregoing minutes represent a true, accurate and
complete record of the meeting held on May 15, 2018. This document constitutes the official minutes for the Highland City
Council Meeting.

Cindy Quick, CMC
City Recorder
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Welcome to the Highland
City Council Meeting
May 15, 2018

6:00 PM WORK SESSION
Call to Order – Mayor Rod Mann
Invocation – Council Member Tim Irwin
Pledge of Allegiance – Council Member Ed Dennis

• HIGHLAND CITY COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN

General Fund CSP

February Model

• Expenditure Evaluation by
Department – 10 years
• Develop Revenue Projections
• Financing Plan

• Operation and Maintenance Deficit

– Revenue Sufficiency and Stability
– Affordability Analysis
– Business Retention

• Year end fund balances

– 1.6 million in the first year
– 8 million by year five

• Council requested to have a specific
discussion on the new expenditures
• What’s Changed?
– LPPSD Increases
– City Cuts
– FY 19/20 Budget

Next Steps

New Expenditures

• Scenarios

• Conservative Approach

– Discussion

• Cost per ERU
–
–
–
–

Estimate Based of Current Land Use
Estimate Based on the Future Land Use
Determine Cost/Benefit
Apply this based on the type of
development

• Presentation – June 12th Work Session

– Priority needs

• Maintain Existing Level of Service
• What is needed?
– Understand the expenditures
– Discuss the timing of the expenditures
– Any other expenditures the Council
would like to include
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Department Presentations
• Community Events and Recorder –
Erin
• Parks and Open Space – Justin
• Storm and Sewer – Justin and Todd
• Fire and Police – Nathan
• Library and Varies - Nathan

7:00 PM REGULAR SESSION

UNSCHEDULED PUBLIC
APPEARANCES
Time set aside for the public to express their ideas and
comments on non agenda items. Please limit comments to
three (3) minutes and state your name and address.

PRESENTATIONS

CONSENT ITEMS

• Item 2a. – Tree Commission Update – John Thomas
• Item 2b. – Governmental Account Practices – Steve Rowley
• Item 2c. – Public Meeting Training – Tim Merrill

• Item 3a. – Approval of Meeting Minutes from May 1, 2018
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Request
DESIGNATION OF OPEN SPACE
PROPERTY FOR DISPOSAL

Item 4 – Public Hearing and Resolution
Presented by – Nathan Crane, AICP
City Administrator, Community Development Director

Aerials

Existing Conditions Map
4” PI Line – 18” depth
Length 630 feet

Regional Storm Drain Line
8’ trail to fence

Main City Trail
20’ drop
2010

2017

Existing Split Rail Fence

Process

Recommendation

• Subdivision Petition

• If Council chooses to dispose of the
property staff is recommending the
following:

– 142 Total Lots
– 60% or 85 Signatures
– 87-88 provided

• Staff Review
– Compliance with Disposal Requirements
– Identify Existing Conditions

• Council Decision

– Relocation of the pressurized irrigation
line
– Bond for the public improvements
– Council determine financing options
– Designed to contain runoff on the
property
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Existing Conditions Map
4” PI Line – 18” depth
Length 630 feet

Storm Drain Line
8’ trail to fence

A REQUEST TO REZONE
PROPERTY FROM R-1-40
TO R-1-30

Main City Trail
20’ drop
Existing Split Rail Fence

Request

Item 5 – Action/Ordinance
Presented by – Presented by – Nathan Crane, AICP
City Administrator, Community Development Director

Vicinity Map

• Reconsider a April 17, 2018 decision to
rezone the property from R-1-40 to R1-20.
• Rezone to R-1-30

Proposed Subdivision

R-1-30
• Purpose
– Create transitional areas within the City
between other residential zones
– Distinction and gradation between one
acre lots and half acre lots.

• Alternative to R-1-20
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Discussion

Recommendation
• Public Meeting
• Council Decision
• If R-1-30 include the following
stipulations:

Budget Assumptions
ADOPT THE TENTATIVE BUDGET
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018-2019

Item 6 – Public Hearing and Resolution
Presented by – Gary LeCheminant, Finance Director

•
•
•
•
•
•

General Fund Summary
• Revenue---$8,957,669
• Expense---$8,924,354
• Net Income---$33,315

Salaries-- possible 3% merit increase
Medical premiums-- capped at 8%
Dental premiums-- at 1%
Property Tax collections-- up 1.6%
Sales Tax collections-- up 4%
Estimate 85 building permits

General Fund Changes
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Lone Peak Fire Exp. Down $10K
Lone Peak Cap. Exp. Down $20K
Library new FTE not in budget
Library non-resident charge not in
6800 West $50K contribution not in
Certified Tax Rate Revenue—May 22
Impact Fee estimates
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Enterprise Funds
• Sewer

Enterprise Funds
• Storm Sewer

– Revenue---$2,279,033
– Expense---$2,502,380
– Net---($223,647)

• Pressurized Irrigation

– Revenue---$542,194
– Expense---$591,810
– Net---($49,610)

• Culinary

– Revenue---$2,499,477
– Expense---$2,440,155
– Net---$59,322

– Revenue---$934,139
– Expense---$1,354,846
– Net---$(420,737)

Dates of Firework Discharge
NOTICE OF FIREWORK AND
OPEN FIRE RESTRICTIONS

Item 7 – Action and Resolution
Presented by – Erin Wells, Assistant City Administrator

State Law – Allowable Reason
for Banning (HB 38)
• Existing or Historical Hazardous
Environmental Conditions
– Mountainous, Brush, Forest, Dry Grass
– Within 200 feet of a Waterways, Trails,
Canyons, etc.
– Wildland Urban Interface

• July 2-July 5 (Independence Day)
• July 22-July 25 (Pioneer Day)
• December 31 from 11:00AM – January 1
at 1:00AM (New Year’s Eve)
• February 5 from 11:00AM – February 6
at 1:00AM (Chinese New Year)

Proposed Banned Areas
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
Beacon Hills Subdivision
Bull River Subdivision, drainage •
areas, and surrounding property •
Chamberry Fields Subdivision
•
Country French Subdivision
Dry Creek Highland Subdivision •
and drainage areas
•
Hidden Oaks Subdivision
•
Highland Glen Park
•
Highland Hills Subdivision
•
Highland Hollow Subdivision
and drainage areas
•
Highland Oaks Subdivision
•
Hunter Ridge Subdivision
•

Lone Peak High School
Mercer Hollow Subdivision
Mitchell Hollow Park and
drainage areas
Mouth of American Fork Canyon
Skye Estates Subdivision
State owned property south of
Lone Peak High School
Sterling Pointe Subdivision
Sunset Mountain Properties
Town Center Splash Pad
View Point Subdivision
west side of 10150 North
Westfield Cove Subdivision.
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2018 New Banned Areas
• west side of 10150 North
• Mitchell Hollow Drainage
• Mitchel Hollow Park

Open Fire Ban Exceptions

Next Steps

• Landscaped private yards with a hose
or fire extinguisher nearby or
• Camp fire pits in City Campgrounds

• Firework Map to Utah County
– Sends County-wide map to firework retailers
and State Fire Marshall
– Publishes on the County website
– Firework retailers display map at register
with the allowed dates.

•
•
•
•

Social Media
Website
Newsletter
Licensed Firework Retailers

Background
AMEND HIGHLAND MUNICIPAL
PARKS AND CEMETERY CODE
DESIGNATE CANYON OAKS AS
CAMPGROUND AND ADOPT FEE
SCHEDULE
Item 8 – Action, Ordinance and Resolution
Presented by – Erin Wells, Assistant City Administrator

• Canyon Oaks Park
• 4000 West 11000 North
• Eagle Scout and Public Work Projects
have gotten it ready for rental
• 1 Fire Pit
• 2 Picnic Tables
• Large Area for Tents
• Permanent Restroom in Parking Lot
• Rentals could begin June 1
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Finances
• $25 per 24 hours for Residents
• $50 per 24 hours for Non-residents
• AF Canyon tent spots rent for $24 per
night
• Rental money would help offset $750
increase in restroom maintenance and
then go to campground upkeep and
improvements
• Would need 30 resident rate rentals to
offset restroom increase

Council Actions
1. Motion to Amend Park Ordinance to
Allow Overnight Camping in
Designated Campgrounds
•

VERIZON FRANCHISE
AGREEMENT

Ordinance also bans airsoft guns

2. Motion to Adopt Resolution
Designating Canyon Oaks as a
Campground and Setting Rental Fees

Item 9 – Action
Presented by – Tim Merrill, City Attorney

MAYOR/COUNCIL AND STAFF
DISCUSSION COMMUNICATION
ITEMS
• Item 10a. – Cemetery Infant Section – City Recorder Cindy
Quick
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable Mayor and
Members of City Council
Highland City
Highland City, Utah

Report on Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Highland City, Utah (the City) as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Governmental Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessment s,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.
Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, the business type-activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of Highland City, Utah as of June 30, 2017, and the respective changes in financial position, and
where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Telephone (801) 590-2600
Fax (801) 265-9405
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Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysis and budgetary comparison information as noted in the table of contents be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements
or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund
financial statements are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 14, 2017 on our
consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Keddington & Christensen, LLC
Salt Lake City, Utah
December 14, 2017
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HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017
The management of Highland City presents the following narrative and analysis of the financial statements and
financial activities of Highland City as prescribed by the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The
information and analysis pertains to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.
Financial Highlights
The assets and deferred outflows of resources of Highland City exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources at June 30, 2017 by $114,231,099 (net position). Of this amount $10,981,975 (unrestricted net position)
may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations.
Highland City's total net position increased by $2,143,147. The majority of the increase was the result of assets
contributed to the City from developers increased by approximately $669,000 from the previous year.
Highland City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances at June 30, 2017 of $5,070,559, an
increase of $1,266,939 in comparison to the prior year. At June 30, 2017 unrestricted fund balance of the general fund
was $2,646,368, or 36% of total general fund expenditures for the year.
Overview of the Financial Statements
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Highland City's basic financial statements.
Highland City's basic financial statements comprise three components; 1) government-wide financial statements; 2)
fund financial statements; and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.
Government-wide Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s
financial position and changes in financial position, similar to consolidated financial statements in a private sector
business. The statements consist of the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities.
The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of Highland City’s assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows
of resources, with the difference between the three reported as net position. Increases or decreases over time in net
position gives an indicator as to whether the financial condition of the City is improving or declining.
The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the most recent
fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses reported in this statement for some items
will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., debt interest payment when the fiscal year ends between interest
payments).
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of Highland City that are principally supported
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover
all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental
activities of Highland City include general government, public safety, streets and public improvements, parks and
recreation, cemetery and garbage. The business-type activities of Highland City include services for water, pressurized
irrigation, sewer (sanitary), and storm sewer.
The government-wide financial statements include Highland City (known as the primary government) and a separate
legal entity (known as component unit). The financial information for the Highland Open Space Special Service
District is included in the financial statements. However, because the City's governing body is the same as the
governing board of this component unit and can substantially control it, their financial information is blended and
reported together with the financial information presented for the primary government.
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HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017
Fund Financial Statements
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for
specific activities or objectives. Highland City, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure
and demonstrate compliance with finance-related laws and regulations. All of the funds of Highland City can be
divided into two categories; governmental funds and proprietary funds.
Governmental funds
Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental
fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of
spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating the near-term
financing requirements.
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for the governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the
long-term impact of the City's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.
Highland City maintains eight (8) individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in
fund balances for the general fund, debt service fund, and three capital projects funds, all of which are considered to
be major funds. Data from the other three (3) governmental funds is provided in the form of individual and combining
statements elsewhere in this report.
Highland City adopts an annual budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for
the general fund to demonstrate compliance with the budget.
Proprietary funds
Highland City maintains one type of proprietary fund known as an enterprise fund. Enterprise funds are used to report
the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses
enterprise funds to account for water, pressurized irrigation, sewer, and storm sewer.
Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more
detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for water, sewer, secondary water and
storm sewer.
Notes to the Financial Statements
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements.
Other Information
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents combining statements
referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds. They are presented immediately following the
notes to the financial statements.
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HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017
Government-wide Financial Analysis
As noted earlier, net position is an indicator of a government’s financial position. In the case of Highland City, assets
and deferred outflows exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows by $114,231,099 at the close of the fiscal year. The
largest portion (89%) of the City's net position reflects its investment in capital assets (land, buildings, machinery and
equipment) and infrastructure (roads, sidewalks, curb and gutter and various utility lines and storage facilities); less
any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide
services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City's investment
in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay the debt must
be provided from other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
At the end of the current fiscal year, the City was able to report positive balances in all three categories of net position
for the government as a whole.

Current and other assets
Capital assets

Governmental
Activities
2017

Governmental
Activities
2016

Business-type
Activities
2017

Business-type
Activities
2016

$

$

$

$

Total Assets

76,504,497

Deferred outflows of resources
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows
Current and other liabilities
Long-term liabilities

$

Total Liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net Position
Total Liabilities, deferred inflows
of Resources, and Net Position

8,622,940
67,881,557

$

6,589,982
70,086,400
76,676,382

8,540,794
47,086,878
55,627,672

6,343,450
47,017,780

Total
2017
$

53,361,230

17,163,734
114,968,435

Total
2016
$

132,132,169

12,933,432
117,104,180
130,037,612

666,651

650,418

155,248

129,769

821,899

780,187

77,171,148

77,326,800

55,782,920

53,490,999

132,954,068

130,817,799

1,747,098
9,990,839

$

1,066,532
10,540,113

$

521,969
4,452,877

$

245,848
4,971,163

$

2,269,067
14,443,716

$

1,312,380
15,511,276

11,737,937

11,606,645

4,974,846

5,217,011

16,712,783

16,823,656

1,967,747

1,872,715

42,439

33,476

2,010,186

1,906,191

58,827,316
104,558
4,533,590

60,628,203
104,558
3,114,679

43,030,436
1,286,814
6,448,385

42,412,291
1,117,581
4,710,640

101,857,752
1,391,372
10,981,975

103,040,494
1,222,139
7,825,319

63,465,464

63,847,440

50,765,635

48,240,512

114,231,099

112,087,952

53,490,999

$ 132,954,068

$ 130,817,799

77,171,148

$

77,326,800
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$

55,782,920

$

HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017

Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
General revenues:
Property and uniform vehicle taxes
Other Taxes
Other
Gain (loss) on disposition of assets

Governmental
Activities
2017

Governmental
Activities
2016

Business-type
Activities
2017

Business-type
Activities
2016

$

$

$

$

Total Revenues
Expenses:
General government
Public safety
Streets and public improvements
Parks and recreation
Cemetery
Garbage
Interest on long-term debt
Water
Pressurized irrigation
Storm sewer
Sewer
Total Expenses
Increase (Decrease) in net position
before transfers
Transfers
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position
Net Position - Beginning
Net Position - Ending

$

2,932,423
11,396
2,206,674

2,977,859
13,296
2,139,655

5,481,796
1,829,062

4,553,453
1,159,974

Total
2017

$

8,414,219
11,396
4,035,736

Total
2016

$

7,531,312
13,296
3,299,629

2,135,825
3,275,266
85,528
284,210

2,017,547
3,114,469
84,679
62,460

72,015
-

37,064
-

2,135,825
3,275,266
157,543
284,210

2,017,547
3,114,469
121,743
62,460

10,931,322

10,409,965

7,382,873

5,750,491

18,314,195

16,160,456

2,529,791
3,387,326
3,305,336
1,015,693
120,915
697,258
256,979
11,313,298

2,506,961
3,343,498
3,685,661
717,013
96,842
685,066
255,919
11,290,960

936,993
1,380,853
466,361
2,073,543
4,857,750

860,431
1,327,420
395,991
1,824,985
4,408,827

2,529,791
3,387,326
3,305,336
1,015,693
120,915
697,258
256,979
936,993
1,380,853
466,361
2,073,543
16,171,048

2,506,961
3,343,498
3,685,661
717,013
96,842
685,066
255,919
860,431
1,327,420
395,991
1,824,985
15,699,787

(381,976)
(381,976)

(880,995)
(15,900)
(896,895)

2,525,123
2,525,123

1,341,664
15,900
1,357,564

2,143,147
2,143,147

460,669
460,669

63,847,440

64,744,335

48,240,512

46,882,948

112,087,952

111,627,283

48,240,512

$ 114,231,099

$ 112,087,952

63,465,464

$

63,847,440

$

50,765,635

$

Governmental activities. As noted in the table above, governmental activities decreased the City's net position by
$381,976. Key elements of the decrease were increased payments for general government, public safety, and parks
and recreation functions compared to the prior year.
Business-type activities. As noted previously in the table, business-type activities increased the City's net position by
$2,525,124. Key elements of the increase from the prior year were (1) increases in contributed infrastructure assets
from developers, and (2) increases in charges for services.
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HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017
The following chart displays the governmental activities program revenues compared to expenses attributed to the
activity.

Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activities
4,000,000
Expenses

Program Revenues

3,500,000
3,000,000
2,500,000
2,000,000
1,500,000
1,000,000
500,000
General
government

Public safety Highways and
public
improvements

Parks and
recreation

Cemetery

Garbage

Interest on
long-term debt

The following chart displays the governmental activities program revenues by type.

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities
Other
1%
Charges for services
27%
Other Taxes
31%

Operating grants and
contributions
0%

Property and uniform
vehicle taxes
20%

Capital grants and
contributions
21%
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HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017
Business-type Activities
The following chart displays the business-type activities revenues compared to program expenses attributed to the
activity. Traditionally business-type activities are self-supporting and the chart depicts the relationship of revenues to
expenses.

Expenses and Program Revenues - Business-type Activities
3,000,000
Expenses

Revenues

2,500,000

2,000,000

1,500,000

1,000,000

500,000

0
Sewer

Pressurized irrigation

Storm sewer

Water

The following chart displays the business-type activities revenues by type.

Revenues by Source - Business-type Activities
Capital grants and
contributions
25%

Other
1%

Charges for services
74%
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HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017
Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds
As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.
Governmental funds. The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financing
requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance is a useful measure of the government’s net resources available
for spending at the end of the fiscal year.
At June 30, 2017, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $5,070,559, which was
an increase of $1,266,939 in comparison with the prior year.
The general fund is the main operating fund of the City. At June 30, 2017, unrestricted fund balance of the general
fund was $2,646,368. A comparison of the unrestricted fund balance and total fund balance to total general fund
expenditures is a measure of liquidity. Unrestricted fund balance represented 36% of total general fund expenditures.
The City's unrestricted general fund balance increased $457,154 during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.
Proprietary funds. The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide
financial statements in more detail.
Culinary Water Fund-Unrestricted net position at June 30, 2017 amounted to $2,361,104 an increase of $249,932 from
the previous year. Operating revenues were $854,250 and operating expenses were $936,993.
Pressurized Irrigation fund-Unrestricted net position at June 30, 2017 amounted to $1,168,365, an increase of
$947,166 from the previous year. Operating revenues were $2,152,101 and operating expenses were $1,247,907.
Sewer fund-Unrestricted net position at June 30, 2017 amounted to $2,090,680, an increase of $343,054 from the
previous year. Operating revenues were $1,945,234 and operating expenses were $2,073,543.
Storm sewer fund- Unrestricted net position at June 30, 2017 amounted to $828,237 an increase of $197,594 from the
previous year. Operating revenues were $530,212 and operating expenses were $466,361.
General Fund Budgetary Highlights
During the fiscal year, the general funds original budget was amended from $7,336,498 to a final budget total of
$7,447,939, largely as the result of increased anticipated expenses for General Government, and Parks and Recreation
items. The budgeted transfers in were decreased from $322,177 to $215,434, and the budgeted transfers out increased
from $1,164,579 to $1,375,629. Overall the City’s general fund was within budgeted expenses by $144,935, however,
the Public Safety and Garbage departments were over budget for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.
Capital Assets and Debt Administration
Capital Assets. Highland City's investment in capital assets from governmental and business-type activities as of June
30, 2017 was $114,968,435 (net of accumulated depreciation). The investment in capital assets includes land,
buildings, improvements other than buildings, machinery and equipment, infrastructure, and water stock. The total
decrease in the City's investment in capital assets for the current year was $2,135,745, which is primarily as a result
of depreciation during the year, offset by increases related primarily to developer infrastructure contributions.
A summary of the City’s capital assets by category are shown in the table on the following page.
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HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017
Highland City’s Capital Assets
Governmental
Activities
2017

Governmental
Activities
2016

Business-type
Activities
2017

Business-type
Activities
2016

Land
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Construction in progress
Water shares
Total
Less accumulated depreciation

$

39,533,903
14,080,927
70,514,074
1,995,836
236,032
126,360,772
(58,479,215)

$

39,607,624
14,080,927
69,840,654
1,995,837
236,032
125,761,074
(55,674,674)

$

534,455
1,157,289
36,041,217
2,082,330
24,061,831
63,877,122
(16,790,244)

$

534,455
1,157,289
34,810,071
2,076,830
24,055,078
62,633,723
(15,615,943)

Total Capital Assets

$

67,881,557

$

70,086,400

$

47,086,878

$

47,017,780

Total
2017
$

40,068,358
15,238,216
106,555,291
4,078,166
236,032
24,061,831
190,237,894
(75,269,459)

$ 114,968,435

Total
2016
$

40,142,079
15,238,216
104,650,725
4,072,667
236,032
24,055,078
188,394,797
(71,290,617)

$ 117,104,180

Additional information on the City's capital assets is available in the notes to the financial statements.
Long-term debt. On June 30, 2017 the City had a total bonded debt outstanding of $11,152,721. Of this amount
$1,900,000 was considered general obligation debt and was backed by the full faith and credit of the City.
Highland City’s Outstanding Debt
Governmental
Activities
2017

Governmental
Activities
2016

Business-type
Activities
2017

Business-type
Activities
2016

General obligation bonds
Revenue bonds
Other long term debt

$

9,225,000
204,792

$

9,870,000
185,821

$

1,927,721
2,222,262

$

2,273,265
2,432,264

$

1,927,721
9,225,000
2,427,054

$

2,273,265
9,870,000
2,618,085

Total

$

9,429,792

$

10,055,821

$

4,149,983

$

4,705,529

$

13,579,775

$

14,761,350

Total
2017

Total
2016

The Utah State Constitution limits the amount of general obligation debt a municipal government may issue at 4% of
its total taxable property value of $1,322,333,013, except cities of the fourth class (Highland City is classified as a
fourth class city) may issue debt up to an additional 8% of its total taxable property value for water systems, artificial
lighting systems or sewer systems. On June 30, 2017 the City’s limitation was $52,893,321 and the additional
limitation was $105,786,641, the current general obligation bonds are $1,927,721.
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates
The fiscal year 2017-2018 budget and rates are based on the forecast that the Utah economy will continue the trends
from fiscal year 2016-2017 with some slight adjustments. Property tax revenue will increase slightly because of new
construction in Highland. Fiscal year 2016-2017 saw 118 housing permits. For budgeting purposes and to be
conservative on the revenue side, Highland expects to have 100 housing permits in fiscal year 2017-2018. The state
economist expects sales tax revenue to increase about 4% over fiscal year 2017. However, for budgeting purposes
sales tax revenue was left relatively flat so that the city does not overspend in the general fund for fiscal year 2018.
These factors and others were considered in preparing the fiscal year 2018 budget. During the current fiscal year,
unassigned fund balance in the general fund increased by $464,582. The general fund unrestricted fund balance of
$2,646,368 represented 28.9% of general fund revenues which is outside the range of 5% to 25% limit allowed by
state law. In dollar terms this makes the fund balance about $360,570 over the 25% range. In fiscal 2017-2018,
$327,000 has already been budgeted for the purchase of two new snow plows. The city will continue to budget
conservatively and attempt to keep the unassigned fund balance close to the 25% limit to ensure that there are sufficient
funds for any unexpected expenditures.
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HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017
Request for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Highland City’s activities for those with an interest
in the City’s operations and position. Questions concerning the information provided in this report or requests for
additional financial information should be addressed to: Highland City, Finance Director, 5400 W. Civic Center Drive,
Suite #1, Highland, Utah 84003.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2017
Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities

$

$

Total

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:
Accounts
Taxes
Due from other governments
Prepaid expenses
Restricted amounts:
Cash and cash equivalents
Capital Assets:
Non-depreciable Capital Assets
Depreciable Capital Assets (net)
Total Assets
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred loss on refunding
Deferred outflows relating to pensions
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources

$

4,402,528

7,198,890

$

11,601,418

11,516
2,456,243
180,558
7,428

55,090
-

1,564,667

1,286,814

2,851,481

39,769,935
28,111,622

24,596,286
22,490,592

64,366,221
50,602,214

76,504,497

55,627,672

132,132,169

375,551
291,100

155,248

375,551
446,348

666,651

155,248

821,899

77,171,148

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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66,606
2,456,243
180,558
7,428

-

$

55,782,920

$

132,954,068

HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (Continued)
June 30, 2017

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued interest payable
Developer and customer deposits
Unearned revenues
Payable from restricted assets
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Net pension liability

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities

$

$

Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unearned property tax revenue
Deferred inflows relating to pensions
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resoureces
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Debt Service / park construction
Impact fees
Unrestricted
Total Net Position
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources,
and Net Position

$

382,897
116,135
83,008
832,538
12,800
319,720

461,327
25,066
35,576
-

Total
$

844,224
141,201
118,584
832,538
12,800
319,720

780,030
8,649,762
561,047

607,567
3,542,416
302,894

1,387,597
12,192,178
863,941

11,737,937

4,974,846

16,712,783

1,888,291
79,456

42,439

1,888,291
121,895

1,967,747

42,439

2,010,186

13,705,684

5,017,285

18,722,969

58,827,316

43,030,436

101,857,752

104,558
4,533,590

20,088
1,266,726
6,448,385

124,646
1,266,726
10,981,975

63,465,464

50,765,635

114,231,099

77,171,148

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$

55,782,920

$

132,954,068

HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017

Expenses
Functions/Programs
Governmental Activities:
General government
Public safety
Streets and public works
Parks and recreation
Cemetery
Garbage
Interest on long term debt
Total Governmental Activities
Business-type Activities:
Sewer
Pressurized irrigation
Storm sewer
Water
Total Business-type Activities
Total Government

$

2,529,791
3,387,326
3,305,336
1,015,693
120,915
697,258
256,979

Charges for
S ervices

$

1,528,318
238,539
136,793
51,727
190,635
786,411
-

Program Revenues
Operating
Capital
Grants and
Grants and
Contributions
Contributions

$

11,396
-

$

112,107
1,685,369
409,198
-

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities

$

$

(1,001,473)
(3,025,284)
(1,483,174)
(554,768)
69,720
89,153
(256,979)

(1,001,473)
(3,025,284)
(1,483,174)
(554,768)
69,720
89,153
(256,979)

11,396

2,073,543
1,380,853
466,361
936,993

1,945,234
2,152,101
530,212
854,249

-

728,367
511,072
219,569
370,054

-

600,058
1,282,320
283,420
287,310

600,058
1,282,320
283,420
287,310

4,857,750

5,481,796

-

1,829,062

-

2,453,108

2,453,108

2,453,108

(3,709,697)

8,414,219

$

11,396

$

4,035,736

(6,162,805)

-

$

2,932,423

$

(6,162,805)

-

Total

11,313,298

$ 16,171,048

2,206,674

Net (Expense) Revenue &
Changes in Net Assets

(6,162,805)

General Revenues:
Taxes:
Property
Vehicle
Sales
Franchise
Unrestricted investment earnings
Gain on disposal of assets
M iscellaneous
Transfers

1,956,692
179,133
2,201,996
1,073,270
45,713
284,210
39,815
-

72,015
-

1,956,692
179,133
2,201,996
1,073,270
117,728
284,210
39,815
-

Total General Revenues

5,780,829

72,015

5,852,844

2,525,123

2,143,147

63,847,440

48,240,512

112,087,952

$ 63,465,464

$ 50,765,635

$ 114,231,099

Changes in Net Assets
Net Position, Beginning
Net Position, Ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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(381,976)

HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2017
General
Fund
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:
Accounts
Taxes
Due from other governments
Prepaid expenses - Highland fling
Restricted amounts:
Cash and cash equivalents
Total Assets

$ 2,344,752

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
$
Accrued liabilities
Developer bonds held
Unearned revenue - Highland fling donations
Payable from restricted assets

$

3,618

7,505
2,456,243
180,558
7,428

-

832,538

-

$ 5,829,024

341,366
100,233
832,538
12,800
-

Capital
Projects
Roads

Debt
S ervice
$

365,872

Capital
Projects
Building
$

-

27,937

Capital
Projects
Parks
$

-

627,571

923,427

Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds
$

-

-

736,922

Total
Governmental
Funds
$

4,011
-

104,558

4,402,528

-

11,516
2,456,243
180,558
7,428

-

1,564,667

$

3,618

$

993,443

$

27,937

$

1,027,985

$

740,933

$

8,622,940

$

-

$

215,162

$

-

$

3,743
104,558

$

37,788
15,902
-

$

382,897
116,135
832,538
12,800
319,720

Total Liabilities

1,286,937

-

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unearned property tax revenue

1,888,291

-

-

-

1,888,291

-

-

7,428

-

-

-

-

412,409

-

104,558
-

2,646,368

3,618
-

365,872

27,937
-

815,126
-

687,243
-

3,618
1,530,306
3,012,240

2,653,796

3,618

778,281

27,937

919,684

687,243

5,070,559

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources
Fund Balances:
Nonspendable:
Prepaid expenses
Restricted for:
Debt service / park construction
Impact fees
Assigned to:
Debt service
Capital projects & opens space funds
Unassigned
Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
of Resources, and Fund Balance

$ 5,829,024

$

3,618

215,162

$

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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993,443

-

$

53,690

1,664,090

-

-

1,888,291

-

-

-

1,888,291

-

-

-

7,428

-

104,558
412,409

27,937

108,301

$

1,027,985

$

740,933

$

8,622,940

HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2017
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets
are different because:
Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

$

5,070,559

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds.

67,881,557

Deferred loss on refuding of debt is not a financial resource, and therefore, is not
reported in the funds.

375,551

Interest expense is not due and payable in the current period and therefore is not
recorded in the funds.

(83,008)

Net pension assets, net pension liabilities, Deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions are not current financial
resources, and therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

(349,403)

Long-term liabilities, including bonds, capital leases, and notes are not due and
payable in the current period and therefore, are not reported in the funds.

(9,429,792)

Total Net Position - Governmental Activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$

63,465,464

HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017
Ge ne ral
Fund
Revenue s:
T axes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Impact fees
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Interest
Miscellaneous

$

Total Re ve nues
Expe nditure s:
Current:
General government
Public safety
Streets and public works
Parks and recreation
Cemetery
Garbage
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal
Interest

$

-

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures
O ther Financing Source s (Uses):
Sale of capital assets
T ransfers in
T ransfers out
Total O the r Financing Source s (Use s)
Net Change in Fund Balance s
Fund Balance s, Be ginning
$

$

308,490
3,551

8,628,026

-

312,041

1,662,304
3,186,557
1,049,467
628,473
79,948
696,255
-

-

238,396
-

-

Total Expenditures

Fund Balance s, Ending

5,411,091
654,754
744,351
1,515,736
238,539
23,736
39,819

Capital
Proje cts
Roads

De bt
Se rvice

645,000
227,544

Capital
Proje cts
Building
$

112,107
357
-

Capital
Projects
Parks
$

112,464

-

409,198
10,717
-

Nonmajor
Governme ntal
Funds
$

281,798
7,352
-

Total
Gove rnme ntal
Funds
$

5,411,091
654,754
744,351
829,795
1,797,534
238,539
42,162
43,370

419,915

289,150

9,761,596

-

5,850
32,065

398,629
-

2,060,933
3,186,557
1,287,863
634,323
79,948
696,255
32,065

2,100

-

-

645,000
229,644

7,303,004

872,544

238,396

2,100

37,915

398,629

1,325,022

(872,544)

73,645

110,364

382,000

(109,479)

299,750
215,434
(1,375,624)

872,583
-

631,050
-

(98,323)

(373,120)

58,181
128,000
-

(860,440)

872,583

631,050

(98,323)

(373,120)

186,181

357,931

464,582

39

704,695

12,041

8,880

76,702

1,266,939

2,189,214

3,579

73,586

15,896

910,804

610,541

3,803,620

2,653,796

$

3,618

$

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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778,281

$

27,937

$

919,684

$

687,243

8,852,588

909,008

357,931
1,847,067
(1,847,067)

$

5,070,559

HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities
are different because:
Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

$

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities, assets with an initial cost of more than $5,000 are
capitalized and the cost is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays
exceeded depreciation in the current period.
Capital outlay
Depreciation expense

1,266,939

29,497
(2,804,542)

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets
(i.e.., sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to decrease net assets.
Asset deletions

(73,723)

Contributed assets are not recorded in governmental funds due to no current
resources being expended in the acquisition of such assets. The Statement of
Activities will record these contributed assets at their estimated fair value on the
date of contribution.

643,924

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds by
issuing debt which increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net
Position. Repayments of bond principal are expenditures in the governmental
funds, but reduce liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.
Payment of bond principal

645,000

Pension expense resulting from the changes in net pension assets, net pension
liabilities, deferred outflows relating to pensions, and deferred inflows relating to
pensions are not the use of current financial resources, and therefore, are not
reported in the governmental funds.

(42,766)

Expenses are recognized in the governmental funds when paid or due; however,
the Statement of Activities is presented on the accrual basis and expenses and
liabilities are reported when incurred, regardless of when financial resources are
available or expenses are paid or due. This adjustment reflects the changes due
to accrued interest on bonds payable and compensated absences.
Accrued interest
Amortization of deferred loss
Compensated absences

8,917
(36,252)
(18,970)

Changes in net position of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$

(381,976)

HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES – BUDGET AND ACTUAL – GENERAL FUND
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017
Budgeted Amounts
Original
Budget
Revenues:
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Interest
Miscellaneous

$

5,049,726
630,057
613,000
1,392,004
206,000
3,500
50,000

Final
Budget
$

5,273,812
590,800
661,400
1,484,504
210,000
20,000
50,000

Actual
Amounts
$

5,411,091
654,754
744,351
1,515,736
238,539
23,736
39,819

Variance with
Final Budget
$

137,279
63,954
82,951
31,232
28,539
3,736
(10,181)

Total Revenues

7,944,287

8,290,516

8,628,026

337,510

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Public safety
Streets and public works
Parks and recreation
Cemetery
Garbage

1,633,916
3,168,580
1,182,335
577,347
85,469
688,851

1,700,150
3,168,580
1,162,142
642,247
85,969
688,851

1,662,304
3,186,557
1,049,467
628,473
79,948
696,255

37,846
(17,977)
112,675
13,774
6,021
(7,404)

7,336,498

7,447,939

7,303,004

144,935

607,789

842,577

1,325,022

482,445

322,177
(1,164,579)

215,434
(1,375,629)

299,750
215,434
(1,375,624)

299,750
5

(842,402)

(1,160,195)

(860,440)

299,755

(317,618)

464,582

Total Expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Sale of capital assets
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances

$

(234,613)

$

2,189,214

Fund Balances, Beginning
Fund Balances, Ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$

2,653,796

$

782,200

HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION – PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2017

Sewer
Assets:
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital assets:
Water shares
Land
Buildings
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows relating to pensions
Total Assets and
Deferred Outflows of Resources

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Nonmajor
Pressurized
Storm
Irrigation
Water
Sewer

$ 2,443,153
1,266,726
24,259

$ 1,287,348
20,088
19,284

$ 2,493,214
8,532

3,734,138

1,326,720

2,501,746

26,540
10,158,984
184,643
(4,394,097)

22,423,982
277,450
663,667
14,054,265
183,506
(5,948,314)

1,637,849
107,132
493,622
8,551,301
1,398,013
(5,051,373)

123,333
3,276,667
316,168
(1,396,460)

24,061,831
534,455
1,157,289
36,041,217
2,082,330
(16,790,244)

5,976,070

31,654,556

7,136,544

2,319,708

47,086,878

9,710,208

32,981,276

9,638,290

3,297,898

55,627,672

48,824

30,682

41,187

34,555

155,248

$ 9,759,032

$ 33,011,958

$ 9,679,477

$ 3,332,453

$ 55,782,920

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$

Total

975,175
3,015

$ 7,198,890
1,286,814
55,090

978,190

8,540,794

HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION – PROPRIETARY FUNDS (Continued)
June 30, 2017

Sewer
Liabilities:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued interest payable
Compensated absences
Notes payable
Bonds payable - current
Total Current Liabilities

$

277,311
8,309
9,842
-

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Nonmajor
Pressurized
Storm
Irrigation
Water
Sewer

$

41,543
6,132
35,576
10,006
218,159
350,000

$

58,219
6,747
11,250
-

$

84,254
3,878
8,310
-

Total

$

461,327
25,066
35,576
39,408
218,159
350,000

295,462

661,416

76,216

96,442

1,129,536

21,234
95,453

9,391
1,910,562
1,577,721
58,031

13,574
80,646

9,934
68,764

54,133
1,910,562
1,577,721
302,894

116,687

3,555,705

94,220

78,698

3,845,310

412,149

4,217,121

170,436

175,140

4,974,846

13,407

8,270

11,394

9,368

42,439

5,976,070

27,598,114

7,136,544

2,319,708

43,030,436

1,266,726
2,090,680

20,088
1,168,365

2,361,103

828,237

1,266,726
20,088
6,448,385

9,333,476

28,786,567

9,497,647

3,147,945

50,765,635

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
of Resources, and Net Position $ 9,759,032

$ 33,011,958

$ 9,679,477

$ 3,332,453

$ 55,782,920

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated absences
Notes payable
Bonds payable
Net pension liability
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows relating to pensions
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for impact fees
Impact fees
Debt service
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

-

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
NET POSITION – PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017

Sewer
Operating Revenues:
Charges for services
Intergovernmental
Connection fees
Miscellaneous
Total Operating Revenues
Operating Expenses:
Salaries and benefits
Operations
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (Loss)

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Nonmajor
Pressurized
Storm
Irrigation
Water
Sewer

$ 1,942,707
2,527
-

$ 2,143,071
9,030
-

1,945,234

2,152,101

220,783
1,518,119
334,641
2,073,543

$

787,995
59,374
6,880

$

Total

530,212
-

$ 5,403,985
9,030
61,901
6,880

854,249

530,212

5,481,796

187,109
655,671
405,127

199,894
427,837
309,262

127,315
213,775
125,271

735,101
2,815,402
1,174,301

1,247,907

936,993

466,361

4,724,804

(128,309)

904,194

(82,744)

63,851

756,992

269,272
33,335
-

328,644
6,795
(132,946)

23,413
-

8,472
-

597,916
72,015
(132,946)

302,607

202,493

23,413

8,472

536,985

Income (Loss)

174,298

1,106,687

(59,331)

72,323

1,293,977

Capital Contributions

459,095

182,428

370,054

219,569

1,231,146

Changes in Net Assets

633,393

1,289,115

310,723

291,892

2,525,123

8,700,083

27,497,452

9,186,924

2,856,053

48,240,512

$ 9,333,476

$ 28,786,567

$ 9,497,647

$ 3,147,945

$ 50,765,635

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Impact fees
Interest income
Interest expense
Total Nonoperating Revenues
(Expenses)

Net Position, Beginning
Net Position, Ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS – PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017

S ewer
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash received from other entities
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments to employees

$ 1,943,402
(1,359,530)
(218,609)

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Nonmajor
Pressurized
S torm
Irrigation
Water
S ewer
$ 2,124,235
9,030
(642,375)
(182,813)

365,263

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

$

1,308,077

875,715
(395,470)
(195,596)

$

284,649

529,302
(130,194)
(123,811)

Total
$

275,297

5,472,654
9,030
(2,527,569)
(720,829)
2,233,286

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing
Activities:
Principal payments on bonds and notes payable
Interest and fees paid on bonds and notes payable
Receipt of impact fees
Purchase of capital assets

269,272
-

(550,256)
(150,195)
328,644
(5,500)

-

-

(550,256)
(150,195)
597,916
(5,500)

Net cash provided (used) by capital and
related financing activities

269,272

(377,307)

-

-

(108,035)

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Interest on investments

33,335

6,795

23,413

8,472

72,015

33,335

6,795

23,413

8,472

72,015

667,870

937,565

308,062

283,769

2,197,266

3,042,009

369,871

2,185,152

691,406

6,288,438

$ 3,709,879

$ 1,307,436

$ 2,493,214

$

975,175

$

8,485,704

$

$

$

$

63,851

$

756,992

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities
Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash
Cash at Beginning of Year
Cash at End of Year
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash from (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable
Net pension asset
Deferred outflows relating to pensions
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Compensated absences
Net pension liability
Deferred inflows relating to pensions
Net cash provided (used) by operating
activities
Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities:
Contributions of capital assets
Addition of capital assets due to notes payable

(128,309)

334,641

904,194

405,127

(82,744)

309,262

125,271

1,174,301

(1,832)
8
(8,208)

(18,836)
(5,807)

21,466
10
(7,306)

(910)
9
(4,158)

(112)
27
(25,479)

158,589
(4,512)
12,000
2,886

13,296
(433)
8,493
2,043

32,367
(1,663)
10,686
2,571

83,581
109
6,081
1,463

287,833
(6,499)
37,260
8,963

$

365,263

$ 1,308,077

$

284,649

$

275,297

$

2,233,286

$

459,095
-

$

$

370,054
-

$

219,569
-

$

1,231,146
6,755

182,428
6,755

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Highland City, Utah (the City) was incorporated in 1977 and operates under a council-city manager form
of government. The governing body consists of five elected council members and a mayor. The heads of
the various departments, formed to provide various services, are under the direct supervision of the City
Manager. The City provides the following services: general administrative services, public safety, highway
and public works, parks and recreations, cemetery, garbage, and utilities (sewer, pressurized irrigation,
storm sewer, and culinary water).
The City’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP
for state and local governments through its pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations). The
accounting policies of the City conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America as applicable to governmental units. The more significant accounting policies established in
GAAP and used by the City is discussed below.
(A) The Reporting Entity
In evaluating how to define the City for financial reporting purposes, management has considered all
potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting entity
was made by applying the criteria set forth in the related GASB pronouncement. The basic, but not
the only, criterion for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is the governing
body's ability to exercise oversight responsibility. The most significant manifestation of this ability is
financial interdependency and accountability. Other manifestations of the ability to exercise oversight
responsibility include, but are not limited to, the selection of governing authority, the designation of
management, the ability to significantly influence operations and accountability of fiscal matters. The
other criterion used to evaluate potential component units for inclusion or exclusion from the reporting
entity is the existence of special financing relationships, regardless of whether the City is able to
exercise oversight responsibilities.
The accompanying financial statements present the government and its component units, entities for
which the government is considered to be financially accountable. Blended component units, although
legally separate entities, are in substance, part of the government’s operations.
The Highland City Open Space Special Service District (the District) was established to provide
recreation services, including the operation and maintenance of parks, open space and trails within
certain areas of the City. The District is governed by a board of trustees composed of the City Mayor
and members of the City Council. Although it is legally separate entity from the City, the District is
reported as if it were part of the primary government because of the City’s ability to impose its will
upon the operations of the District. The District is included in these financial statements as the Open
Space Trust Fund. Separate financial statements are not issued for the District.
The City is not a component unit of any other entity. The City’s basic financial statements include all
City operations.
(B) Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
The City’s basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the City as a whole)
and fund financial statements (reporting the City’s major funds). Both the government-wide and fund
financial statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or business type. The City’s
general administrative services, public safety, highway and public works, parks and recreations,
cemetery, and garbage are classified as governmental activities. The City’s sewer, pressurized
irrigation, storm sewer, and water services are classified as business-type activities.
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HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(B) Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the City and its component units.
For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are
reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges
for support.
The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those which are clearly identifiable with
a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or
segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns
in the fund financial statements.
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which they
become available. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
The use of financial resources to acquire capital assets are capitalized as assets in the governmentwide financial statements, rather than reported as an expenditure. Proceeds of long-term debt are
recorded as a liability in the government-wide financial statements, rather than as another financing
source. Amounts paid to reduce long-term debt of the City are reported as a reduction of the related
liability, rather than an expenditure in the government-wide financial statements.
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as
they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter (within 60 days) to pay liabilities of the
current period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt-service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated
absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.
Sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, interest and earned but unreimbursed state and federal grants
associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have
been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Property taxes are measurable as of the date
levied (assessed) and are recognized as revenues when they become available. Available means when
due, or past due, and received within the current period or collected soon enough thereafter (within 60
days) to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. All other revenues are considered to be
measurable and available only when cash is received by the City.
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HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(B) Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)
The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate
accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing
accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, reserves, fund balance, revenues, and expenditures or
expenses as appropriate.
The City reports the following major governmental funds:
The General Fund is the government’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those accounted for in another fund. Principal sources
of revenue are taxes, licenses and permits and intergovernmental revenues. Primary expenses are
for general government, public safety, streets and public works, parks and recreation, cemetery
and garbage.
The Debt Service Fund accounts for the expenditures required for the City’s debt service.
The Capital Projects Roads Fund accounts for the construction and improvement of roads within
the City.
The Capital Projects Building Fund accounts for the construction and improvement of buildings
owned by the City.
The Capital Projects Parks Fund accounts for the construction and improvement of parks owned
by the City.
The City reports the following major proprietary funds:
The Sewer Fund accounts for the activities of the City’s sewer treatment operations.
The Pressurized Irrigation Fund accounts for the activities of the City’s pressurized irrigation
distribution system.
The Water Fund accounts for the activities of the City’s water, treatment and distribution.
Activities of these three funds include administration, operations and maintenance of the sewer,
pressurized irrigation, and water systems, and billing and collection. The funds also account for the
accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, long-term debt principal and interest for all
enterprise fund debt. All costs are financed through charges to utility customers with rates reviewed
regularly and adjusted, if necessary, to ensure the integrity of the funds.
The effect of interfund activity has generally been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements in accordance with GAAP.
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods
in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues
of the enterprise funds are charges to customers of the system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds
include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and
expenses.
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HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(C) Budgetary Data
Annual budgets are prepared and adopted, in accordance with State law, by the City Council on or
before June 22 for the following fiscal year, beginning July 1. Estimated revenues and appropriations
may be increased or decreased by resolution of the City Council at any time during the year. A public
hearing must be held prior to any proposed increase in a fund's appropriations. Budgets include
activities in several different funds, including the General Fund, Special Revenue Fund, Capital
Project Funds, Debt Service Fund, and Enterprise Funds. Annual budgets are also adopted for capital
projects which may include activities which overlap several fiscal years.
Utah State law prohibits the appropriation of unreserved General Fund balance until it exceeds 5% of
the General Fund revenues. Until the unreserved fund balance is greater than the above amount, it
cannot be budgeted, but is used to provide working capital until tax revenue is received, to meet
emergency expenditures, and to cover unanticipated deficits. When an unreserved fund balance is
greater than 25% of the next year's budgeted revenues, the excess must be appropriated within the
following two years.
Once adopted, the budget can be amended by subsequent City Council action. The City Council can
amend the budget to any extent, provided the total budgeted expenditures do not exceed budgeted
revenues and appropriated fund balance, in which case a public hearing must be held. The City
Administrator has the authority to transfer budget appropriations within and between any divisions of
any budgetary fund. The City Council has the authority to transfer budget appropriations between
individual budgetary funds by resolution.
Expenditures in the Capital Projects Fund are budgeted annually on a project-by-project basis.
Although it is the intention of the City that each project be funded by a specific revenue source, the
adopted budget reflects only total anticipated revenues by source.
(D) Tax Revenues
On or before June 22 of each year, the City sets the property tax rate for various municipal purposes.
If the City intends to increase property tax revenues above the tax rate of the previous year, state law
requires the City to provide public notice to property owners and hold public hearings. When these
special public hearings are necessary, the adoption of the final budget must be done before August 17.
All property taxes levied by the City are assessed and collected by Utah County. Taxes are levied as
of January 1 and are due November 30; any delinquent taxes are subject to a penalty. Unless the
delinquent taxes and penalties are paid before January 15, a lien is attached to the property, and the
amount of taxes and penalties bears interest from January 1 until paid. Tax liens are placed on a
property on January 1 following the due date of unpaid taxes. If after five years, delinquent taxes have
not been paid, the County sells the property at a tax sale. Tax collections are remitted to the City from
the County on a monthly basis.
Sales taxes and telephone franchise taxes are collected by the Utah State Tax Commission and remitted
to the City monthly.
Franchise taxes are collected by natural gas, electric utilities, and cable television companies and
remitted to the City periodically.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(E) Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments
The City considers all cash and investments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
and cash equivalents. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are
defined as the cash and cash equivalent accounts and the restricted cash and cash equivalents accounts.
Investments consist of accounts at the Utah Public Treasurer’s Investment Trust (the State Treasurer’s
Pool). Investments of the City are stated at cost, which approximates fair value in accordance with
GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application.
(F) Restricted Assets
Assets whose use is restricted for construction, debt service or by other agreement are segregated on
the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. When both restricted and unrestricted
resources are available for use, it is the government’s policy to use restricted resources first, then
unrestricted resources as they are needed.
(G) Capital Assets
Capital assets, which include land, buildings, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
sidewalks, and similar items) are, reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities
columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government
as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 (amount not rounded) and an estimated
useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost
if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of
donation. The government reports infrastructure assets on a network or subsystem basis. Accordingly,
the amounts spent for the construction or acquisition of infrastructure assets are capitalized and
reported in the government-wide financial statements.
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend asset lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized
as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets is included
as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.
Upon retirement or disposition of capital assets, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are
removed from the respective accounts. Depreciation of capital assets is computed using the straightline method over their estimated useful lives as follows:
Assets

Years

Buildings and structures
Improvements and infrastructure
Machinery, equipment and vehicles

20 to 50
10 to 50
5 to 15

(H) Receivables and Payables
Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the
end of the fiscal year are referred to as “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund
loans).
Receivables at June 30, 2017, consisted of property tax, franchise tax, sales tax, grants and utility
customer accounts (billings for user charged services). Taxes and grants are deemed collectible in full.
Utility charges have an allowance of $24,988.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(I) Long-Term Obligations
In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types, long-term debt and other
long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, businesstype activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts are
deferred and amortized over the life of the applicable debt. In the fund financial statements,
governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs,
during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources while
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.
(J) Compensated Absences
Accumulated unpaid vacation is accrued as incurred based on the years of service for each employee.
Vacation is accumulated on a monthly basis. Proprietary funds expense all accrued vacation amounts
when incurred. Governmental funds report an expenditure as the vacation is paid. Employees may
accumulate up to 175% of their annual accrual. An employee who is separated from employment may
be compensated for all accrued vacation. Sick pay amounts are charged to expenditures when incurred.
Employees may accumulate up to 65 days of sick leave. Employees will not be paid for any
accumulated sick leave at separation from employment.
(K) Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the financial statements will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized
as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City currently reports deferred
outflows of resources relating to pensions, and deferred loss on refunding. The deferred outflows
relating to pensions are required to be reported as part of implementing GASB 68 Accounting and
Financial reporting for Pensions, and GASB 71 Pension Transition for Contributions Made
Subsequent to the Measurement Date. The City reports a deferred loss on refunding as part of the
advanced refunding of the 2006 and 2007 Sales and Franchise Tax Revenue bonds, and will be
amortized over the life of the refunding debt.
In addition to liabilities, the financial statements will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized
as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has two items which are reported under
this section: deferred property tax revenues, and deferred inflows of resources relating to pensions.
Deferred property tax revenue arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting. The
governmental funds report unavailable revenues from property taxes. These amounts are deferred and
recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available. These amounts
account for property taxes levied on January 1, 2017 for the 2017-2018 fiscal year. The deferred
inflows relating to pensions are required to be reported as part of implementing of GASB 68, and
GASB 71, as mentioned before.
(L) Pensions
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the Utah Retirement Systems Pension Plan (URS) and additions to/deductions from URS’s
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by URS. For this
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due
and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
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(M) Equity Balance Classification
Fund balance is classified in the government-wide financial statements as net position and is displayed
in three components:
(1) Net investment in capital assets – consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net
of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages,
notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement
of those assets.
(2) Restricted net position – consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either by (a)
external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments; or (b) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
(3) Unrestricted net position – All other net position that does not meet the definition of “restricted”
or “Net investment in capital assets”.
In accordance with GASB No. 54, the City classifies fund balances in the governmental funds as
follows: Nonspendable, Restricted, Committed, Assigned or Unassigned.
(1) Nonspendable fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are
either (a) not in spendable form, or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.
(2) Restricted fund balance classifications are reported as restricted if, (a) externally imposed by
creditor, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or (b) imposed by
law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
(3) Committed fund balance classification include those funds that can only be used for specific
purposed pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action (Ordinances and Resolutions) of the
City council, which is government’s highest level of decision making authority.
(4) Assigned fund balance classification includes amounts that are constrained by the government’s
intent to use the funds for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed, as
established by the Finance Director, City Council, or City Administrator. Also includes all
remaining amounts that are reported in governmental funds, other than the general fund that are
not classified as nonspendable, restricted nor committed or in the General Fund, that are intended
to be used for specific purposes. The assigned designation may be reversed by the Finance
Director, City Council, or City Administrator.
(5) Unassigned fund balance classification is the residual classification for the General Fund or funds
with deficit fund balances. This classification represents fund balance that has not been assigned
to other funds and that has not be restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within
the General Fund.
Proprietary Fund balance is classified the same as in the government-wide statements.
When restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned resources are available for use, it is the City’s
policy to use restricted resources first, followed by committed resources, then assigned resources, and
then unassigned resources as they are needed.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(N) Estimates and Assumptions
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues, expenditures and expenses during
the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
NOTE 2 CASH AND INVESTMENTS
The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds. Cash includes amounts
in demand deposits as well as time deposits. Investments are stated at cost, which approximate fair value.
Each fund's portion of this pool is displayed on the combined balance sheet as "cash and cash equivalents"
and “restricted cash and cash equivalents,” which includes cash accounts that are separately held by several
of the City's funds.
The State of Utah Money Management Council has the responsibility to advise the State Treasurer about
investment policies, promote measures and rules that will assist in strengthening the banking and credit
structure of the state, and review the rules adopted under the authority of the State of Utah Money
Management Act that relate to the deposit and investment of public funds.
The City’s deposit and investment policy is to follow the Utah Money Management Act (the Act) (Utah
Code, Title 51, Chapter 7) in handling its depository and investment transactions. The Act requires the
depositing of City funds in a qualified depository as any financial institution whose deposits are insured
by an agency of the Federal Government and which has been certified by the State Commissioner of
Financial Institutions as meeting the requirements of the Act and adhering to the rules of the Utah Money
Management Council.
The Money Management Act defines the types of securities authorized as appropriate investments for the
City’s funds and the conditions for making investment transactions. Investment transactions may be
conducted only through qualified depositories, certified dealers, or directly with issuers of the investment
securities.
Statutes authorize the City to invest in negotiable or nonnegotiable deposits of qualified depositories and
permitted negotiable depositories; repurchase and reverse purchase agreements; commercial paper that is
classified as “first tier” by two nationally recognized statistical rating organizations; bankers’ acceptances;
obligations of the United States Treasury including bills, notes, and bonds; obligations, other than mortgage
derivative products, issued by the U.S. government sponsored enterprises (U.S. Agencies) such as the
Federal Home Loan Bank System, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (Freddie Mac), and Federal
National Mortgage Association (Fannie Mae); bonds, notes, and other evidence of indebtedness of political
subdivisions of the State; fixed rate corporate obligations and variable rate securities rated “A” or higher,
or the equivalent of “A” or higher, by two nationally recognized statistical rating organizations; shares or
certificates in a money market mutual fund as defined in the Money Management Act; and the Utah State
Public Treasurers’ Investment Fund.
The Utah State Treasurer’s Office operates the Public Treasurer’s Investment Fund (PTIF). The PTIF is
available for investment of funds administered by any Utah public treasurer and is not registered with the
SEC as an investment company. The PTIF is authorized and regulated by the Money Management Act
(Utah Code, Title 51, Chapter 7). The Act established the Money Management Council which oversees
the activities of the State Treasurer and PTIF and details the types of authorized investments. Deposits in
the PTIF are not insured or otherwise guaranteed by the State of Utah, and participants share proportionally
in any realized gains or losses on investments.
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The PTIF operates and reports to participants on an amortized cost basis. The income, gains, and losses of
the PTIF, net of administration fees, are allocated based upon the participant’s average daily balance. The
fair value of the PTIF investment pool is approximately equal to the value of the pool shares.
Fair Value of Investments
The City measures its investments using fair value measurement guidelines, established by generally
accepted accounting principles. These guidelines recognize a three-tiered fair value hierarchy, as follows:
 Level 1: Quoted prices for identical investments in active markets;
 Level 2: Observable inputs other than quoted market prices; and,
 Level 3: Unobservable inputs.
The City’s PTIF investment, whose fair value at June 30, 2017 was $13,008,138 was measured as a Level
2. The City maintained no other investments during the year.
The City’s cash and investments are summarized below:

$

Investment (3):
Utah State Treasurer's Investment Pool
Total cash and cash equivalents

1,485,774

$

13,008,138
$

14,493,912

Portfolio weighted average maturity

1,505,861

N/A

N/A

12,947,038

N/A

N/A

Carrying
Amount

Fair Value
Cash on deposit

Credit
Rating (1)

Weighted
Average
Years to
Maturity (2)

$

14,452,899
N/A

(1) Ratings are provided where applicable to indicate associated Credit Risk. N/A indicates not applicable.
(2) Interest Rate Risk is estimated using the weighted average days to maturity.
(3) All investments are considered cash equivalents on the financial statements.

The City’s cash and cash equivalents and investments are exposed to certain risks as outlined below:
Cash Deposits
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s deposits may not be
returned to it. As of June 30, 2017, $1,235,774 of the City’s deposits was exposed to custodial credit
risk because it was uninsured and uncollateralized.
Investments
The City invests in the Public Treasurer’s Investment Fund (PTIF) which is a voluntary external
Local Governmental Investment Pool managed by the Utah State Treasurer’s Office and is audited
by the Utah State Auditor. No separate report as an external investment pool has been issued for the
PTIF. The PTIF is not registered with the SEC as an investment company and is not rated. The PTIF
is authorized and regulated by the Utah Money Management Act, (Utah Code Title 51, Chapter 7).
The PTIF invests in high-grade securities which are delivered to the custody of the Utah State
Treasurer, assuring a perfected interest in the securities, and, therefore, there is very little credit risk
except in the most unusual and unforeseen circumstances. The maximum weighted average life of
the portfolio does not exceed 90 days.
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Deposits in the PTIF are not insured or otherwise guaranteed by the State of Utah, and participants
share proportionally in any realized gains or losses on investments. The PTIF operates and reports
to participants on an amortized cost basis. The income, gains, and losses, net of administration fees,
of the PTIF are allocated to participants on the ratio of the participant’s share to the total funds in
the PTIF based on the participant’s average daily balance. The PTIF allocates income and issues
statements on a monthly basis. Twice a year, at June 30 and December 31, which are the accounting
periods for public entities, the investments are valued at fair value and participants are informed of
the fair value valuation factor. Additional information is available at the Utah State Treasurer’s
Office.
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of a counterparty, the City will not be
able to recover the value of its investments that are in the possession of an outside party. The City’s
investment in the Utah Public Treasurer’s Investment Fund has no custodial credit risk.
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. The City’s policy for limiting the credit risks of investments is to comply with the Utah
Money Management Act. The Act requires investment transactions to be conducted only through
qualified depositories, certified dealers, or directly with issuers of the investment securities.
Permitted investments include deposits of qualified depositories; repurchase agreements;
commercial paper that is classified as “first tier” by two nationally recognized statistical rating
organizations, one of which must be Moody’s Investor Services or Standard and Poors; banker
acceptance obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. government sponsored enterprises; bonds and
notes of political subdivisions of the State of Utah; fixed rate corporate obligations and variable
rate securities rated “A” or higher by two nationally recognized statistical rating organizations as
defined by the Act. The PTIF was unrated as of June 30, 2017.
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in the interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of
an investment. The City manages its exposure by investing mainly in the Utah Public Treasurer’s
Investment Fund and by adhering to the Utah Money Management Act. The Act requires that the
remaining term to maturity may not exceed the period of availability of the funds to be invested.
The PTIF’s investment maturity is less than 1 year, which is among the required period of
availability of the Utah Money Management Act.
Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s
investment in a single issuer. The City’s investment in the Utah Public Treasurer’s Investment Fund
has no concentration of credit risk.
NOTE 3 INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS
Interfund Transfers
The purpose of the transfers were to provide cash flows and pay operating expenses. The transfers among
the funds for the year ended June 30, 2017 were as follows:
In
Governmental activities
General Fund
Debt service fund
Capital Improvements - Roads
Capital Improvements - Buildings
Capital Improvements - Parks
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

$

Total governmental activities

215,434
872,583
631,050
128,000

Out
$

1,847,067
$
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1,375,624
98,323
373,120
1,847,067

$

1,847,067
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NOTE 4 RESTRICTED ASSETS
Certain assets are restricted to use as follows as of June 30, 2017:

Amount
Governmental activities
Construction bonds
Park construction
Road construction

$

832,538
104,558
627,571
1,564,667

Total governmental activities
Business-type activities
Restricted for impact fees
Debt service

1,266,726
20,088
1,286,814

Total business-type activities
$

Total restricted assets

2,851,481

NOTE 5 CAPITAL ASSETS
A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2017, is as follows:
Balance
June 30, 2016

Additions/
Transfers

Deletions/
Transfers

Balance
June 30, 2017

Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

$

Total capital assets, not
being depreciated

39,607,624
236,032

$

39,843,656

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and structures
Improvements and infrastructure
Machinery, equipment and vehicles

-

$

-

(73,721)
-

$

39,533,903
236,032

(73,721)

39,769,935

14,080,927
69,840,654
1,995,837

673,421
-

-

14,080,927
70,514,075
1,995,837

85,917,418

673,421

-

86,590,839

(3,181,361)
(50,784,863)
(1,708,450)

(354,568)
(2,335,615)
(114,358)

-

(3,535,929)
(53,120,478)
(1,822,808)

Total accumulated depreciation

(55,674,674)

(2,804,541)

-

(58,479,215)

Total capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation

30,242,744

(2,131,120)

-

28,111,624

Total capital assets, being
depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and structures
Improvements and infrastructure
Machinery, equipment and vehicles

Governmental activities capital
assets, net

$

70,086,400
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(2,131,120)

$

(73,721)

$

67,881,559
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Governmental activities depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs as follows:
Governmental activities:
General government
Public Safety
Streets and Public Works
Parks and recreation
Cemetery
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities

$

203,544
39,621
366,617
194,062
2,000,697

$

2,804,541

The Business-type activities property, plant and equipment consist of the following at June 30, 2017:
Balance
June 30, 2016

Additions/
Transfers

Deletions/
Transfers

Balance
June 30, 2017

Business-type Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Water Shares

$

Total capital assets, not
being depreciated

534,455
24,055,078

$

6,753

$

-

$

534,455
24,061,831

24,589,533

6,753

-

24,596,286

1,157,289
34,810,071
2,076,830

1,231,146
5,500

-

1,157,289
36,041,217
2,082,330

38,044,190

1,236,646

-

39,280,836

(520,501)
(13,743,920)
(1,351,522)

(40,122)
(1,033,764)
(100,415)

-

(560,623)
(14,777,684)
(1,451,937)

Total accumulated depreciation

(15,615,943)

(1,174,301)

-

(16,790,244)

Total capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation

22,428,247

62,345

-

22,490,592

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and structures
Improvements and infrastructure
Machinery, equipment and vehicles
Total capital assets, being
depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and structures
Improvements and infrastructure
Machinery, equipment and vehicles

Business-type activities capital
assets, net

$

47,017,780

$

69,098

$

-

$

47,086,878

$

334,641
405,127
125,271
309,262

$

1,174,301

Business–type depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs as follows:
Business-type activities
Sewer
Pressurized Irrigation
Storm Drain
Water
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities
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NOTE 6 GRANTS
The City receives financial assistance from federal and state governmental agencies in the form of grants.
The disbursement of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance with terms and
conditions specified in the grant agreements and are subject to audit by the City’s independent auditors and
other governmental auditors. Any disallowed claims resulting from such an audit could become a liability
of the General Fund or other applicable funds. Based on prior experience, the City administration believes
such disallowance, if any, would be immaterial.
NOTE 7 DEVELOPER AND CUSTOMER DEPOSITS
Developer and customer deposits are principally deposits from customers that are held by the City for
water connections or for construction, or other projects until such time for refund is warranted.
NOTE 8 UNEARNED PROPERTY TAXES
In conjunction with GASB pronouncement 33, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange
Transactions” the City has accrued property tax receivable and unearned property tax revenue in the
General Fund in the amount of $1,888,291.
Property taxes recorded in the governmental funds are recorded using the modified accrual basis of
accounting, wherein revenues are recognized when they are both measurable and available (expected to be
received within 60 days). Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of the first day of
January. Property taxes are levied on October 1, and then are due and payable at November 30. Since the
property tax amounts are not expected to be received within 60 days after the year ended June 30, 2017,
the City was required to record both a receivable and unearned revenue of the estimated amount of the
total property tax to be levied on October 1, 2017.
NOTE 9 JOINT VENTURE
The City and two other municipalities (the Members) entered into an interlocal agreement to create Lone
Peak Public Safety District (Lone Peak). Lone Peak was created to provide fire, emergency medical
services, and police services. Lone peak is funded by direct payments from the Member cities which is
allocated on a population basis. Lone Peak is governed by a Board of Public Safety Commissioners
composed of two elected or appointed officials from each of the Member cities.
Audited financial statements for Lone Peak are prepared annually and can be obtained from Lone Peak’s
finance director, Lone Peak Public Safety District, 5400 W Civic Center Blvd. Suite #1.
A summary of transactions between the City and Lone Peak is shown below:
2017
Payments to Lone Peak
Administrative expenses
Member payments for
Police
Fire / EMS

$

115,178
1,925,948
1,145,431

Total payments to Lone Peak

$ 3,186,557

Receipts from Lone Peak
Rent of office space
Reimbursement of employee wages
and office supplies used by Lone Peak
Total receipts from Lone Peak

$

50,711
$
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The following is a summary of long-term debt transactions of the City for the year ended June 30, 2017:
June 30,
2016
Governmental Activities:
Bonds payable
Revenue bonds

$

Additions

9,870,000

Total bonds payable

9,870,000

Compensated absences

185,821

Governmental activities long-term
liabilities

$

10,055,821

$

$

-

June 30,
2017

Retirements

$

(645,000)

$

Due Within
One Year

9,225,000

$

684,000

-

(645,000)

9,225,000

684,000

92,632

(73,660)

204,793

96,030

92,632

$

(718,660)

$

9,429,793

$

780,030

Governmental Activities:
Revenue Bonds
Series 2006 Sales and Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds, original issue of $6,000,000,
principal due in annual installments beginning September 2007, interest at 4.00% to
4.35% due in semi-annual installments beginning March 2007. In 2015 the City issued
Series 2015 Sales and Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds which refunded $3,645,000 of the
principal balance, with the final payment made September 2016. The bonds were issued
to finance the costs associated with construction of police and fire public safety
buildings.

$

-

Series 2007 Sales and Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds, original issue of $7,315,000,
principal due in annual installments beginning September 2008, interest at 4.00% to
5.25% due in semi-annual installments beginning September 2007, with the final
payment due September 2027. The bonds were issued to finance the costs associated
with acquisition, construction and equipping park improvements and related
improvements.

330,000

Series 2015 Sales and Franchise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, original issue of
$3,970,000, principal due in annual installments beginning September 2017, interest
ranging from 1.00% to 3.30% due in semi-annual installments beginning March 2015,
with the final payment due September 2026. The bonds were issued to partially refund
the Series 2006 Sales and Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds.

3,925,000

Series 2016 Sales and Franchise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, original issue of
$4,970,000, principal due in annual installments beginning September 2018, interest at
2.095% due in semi-annual installments beginning March 2016, with the final payment
due September 2027. The bonds were issued to partially refund the Series 2007 Sales
and Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds. The refunding results in a cash savings of
$345,045, and an economic gain of $376,357.

4,970,000

Total Tax Revenue Bonds - Governmental Activities
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June 30,
2016
Business-type Activities:
Bonds payable
General obligation bonds

$

Plus: unamortized premiums
Total bonds payable
Notes payable
Compensated absences
Business-type activities long-term
liabilities

$

Additions

2,240,000

$

-

Retirements

$

(340,000)

$

June 30,

Due Within

2017

One Year

1,900,000

$

350,000

33,265

-

(5,544)

27,721

2,273,265

-

(345,544)

1,927,721

350,000

2,332,222

6,755

(210,256)

2,128,721

218,159

100,042

24,193

(30,694)

93,541

39,408

4,705,529

$

30,948

$

(586,494)

$

-

4,149,983

$
.

607,567

Business-type Activities
General Obligation Bonds
Series 2009 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, original issue of $4,310,000, principal
payments due in annual installments beginning May 2010, interest at 2.75% to 4.125%
due in semi-annual installments beginning November 2009 with the final payment due
May 2022. The bonds were issued to refund the outstanding portion of the 1998
General Obligation Refunding Bonds.
Total General Obligation Bonds - Business-type Activities

$

1,900,000

$

1,900,000

$

411,512

Notes Payable
Note payable to the Provo River Users Association for the City’s portion of costs
relating to the Provo Reservoir Canal Enclosure Project. Original amount $615,833,
interest at 4.00%, approximately 22% of original principal is due in two equal
installments in July 2010 and March 2011 along with accrued interest. Remaining
principal and interest to be paid in annual installments beginning March 2012 with final
payment due March 2035.
Assessment payable to the Highland Conservation District for the City’s portion of
costs relating to the Provo Reservoir Canal Enclosure Project. Original amount
$1,563,945, principal and interest at 2.65% due in installments beginning November
2010 with final installment due November 2035.
Total Notes Payable - Business-type Activities
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1,717,209
$

2,128,721
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NOTE 10 LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
All of the City’s Sales and Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds are payable solely by a pledge and assignment
of their associated revenue sources. Total future sales tax of $9,870,000 has been pledged through 2028.
The current revenue recognized during the period for pledged Franchise and Sales Tax Revenue bonds was
$3,130,491 compared to principal and interest of $871,149 paid during the year which equals a coverage
ratio of 3.59.
The annual debt service requirements to maturity, including principal and interest for the long-term debt,
as of June 30, 2017, are as follows:
Governmental Activities
Franchise and Revenue Bonds
Principal
Interest

Year Ending
June 30,
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023-2027
2028

$

684,000
649,000
799,000
816,000
833,000
4,479,000
965,000

$

201,988
185,817
173,148
157,768
140,843
394,824
10,108

$

9,225,000

$

1,264,496

Business-type Activities
General Obligation Bonds
Principal
Interest

Year Ending
June 30,
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022

$

350,000
365,000
380,000
395,000
410,000

$

76,512
62,512
47,912
32,712
16,912

$

1,900,000

$

236,560

Business-type Activities
Notes Payable
Principal
Interest

Year Ending
June 30,
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023-2027
2028-2032
2033-2035
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$

218,159
88,228
90,458
92,762
98,470
532,333
605,800
402,508

$

55,240
50,077
47,839
45,539
43,176
176,029
102,455
21,645

$

2,128,721

$

542,000

HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
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NOTE 10 LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
During 2016, the City defeased $4,600,000 of the 2007 Sales and Franchise Tax revenue bonds by placing
new bond proceeds in an irrevocable trust to provide for the future debt service payments on the defeased
bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the
government’s financial statements. At June 30, 2017, $4,600,000 of defeased bonds are still outstanding.
NOTE 11 RISK MANAGEMENT
The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters for which the City carries commercial
insurance. This insurance covers all of these risks except natural disasters.
NOTE 12 RETIREMENT PLANS

Plan Description
Eligible plan participants are provided with pensions through the Utah Retirement Systems. The Utah
Retirement Systems are comprised of the following pension trust funds:
Defined Benefit Plans



Public Employees Noncontributory Retirement System (Noncontributory System); is a multiple
employer, cost sharing, public employee retirement systems.
Tier 2 Public Employees Contributory Retirement System (Tier 2 Public Employees System); is
a multiple-employer, cost sharing, public employee retirement system.

The Tier 2 Public Employees System became effective July 1, 2011. All eligible employees beginning on
or after July 1, 2011, who have no previous service credit with any of the Utah Retirement Systems, are
members of the Tier 2 Retirement System.
The Utah Retirement Systems (Systems) are established and governed by the respective sections of Title
49 of the Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended. The System’s defined benefit plans are amended
statutorily by the State Legislature. The Utah State Retirement Office Act in Title 49 provides for the
administration of the Systems under the direction of the Utah State Retirement Board, whose members are
appointed by the Governor. The Systems are fiduciary funds defined as pension (and other employee
benefit) trust funds. URS is a component unit of the State of Utah. Title 49 of the Utah Code grants the
authority to establish and amend the benefit terms.
URS issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained by writing Utah Retirement Systems,
560 E. 200 S. Salt Lake City, Utah 84102 or visiting the website: www.urs.org.
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Benefits Provided
URS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Retirement benefits are as follows:
Summary of Benefits by System

System

Final Average
Salary

Noncontributory System

Highest 3 years

Tier 2 Public Employees
System

Highest 5 years

Years of Service
required and/or age
eligible for benefit

Benefit percent per
year of service

COLA**

30 years any age
25 years any age*
20 years age 60*
10 years age 62*
4 years age 65

2.0% per year all years

Up to 4%

35 years any age
20 years age 60*
10 years age 62*
4 years age 65

1.5% per year all years

Up to 2.5%

* With actuarial reductions
** All post-retirement cost-of-living adjustments are non-compounding and are based on the original benefit except
Judges, which is a compounding benefit. The cost-of-living adjustments are also limited to the actual Consumer Price
Index (CPI) increase for the year, although unused CPI increases no met may be carried forward to subsequent
years.

Contributions
As a condition of participation in the Systems, employers and/or employees are required to contribute
certain percentages of salary and wages as authorized by statute and specified by the URS Board.
Contributions are actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with employee contributions
(where applicable) is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with
an additional amount to finance any unfunded actuarial accrued liability. Contribution rates as of June 30,
2017 are as follows:

Employee

Employer

Employer
401(k)

Contributory System
111 - Local Government Div - Tier 2

N/A

14.91%

1.78%

Noncontributory System
15 - Local Governmental Div - Tier 1

N/A

18.47%

N/A

Tier 2 DC Only
211 - Local Government

N/A

6.69%

10.00%

Utah Retirement Systems

Tier 2 rates include a statutory required contribution to finance the unfunded actuarial accrued liability of
the Tier 1 plans.
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For fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the employer and employee contributions to the Systems were as
follows:
Employer
Contributions
$
208,321
12,716
12,219

System
Noncontributory System
Tier 2 Public Employees System
Tier 2 DC Only System
Total Contributions

$

233,256

Employee
Contributions
N/A
N/A
$

-

Contributions reported are the URS Board approved required contributions by System. Contributions in
the Tier 2 Systems are used to finance the unfunded liabilities in the Tier 1 Systems.
Pension Assets, Liabilities, Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions
At June 30, 2017, we reported a net pension asset of $0 and a net pension liability of $863,940.
Net Pension
Asset
Noncontributory System
Tier 2 Public Employees System
Total Net Pension Asset / Liability

Net Pension
Liability

$

-

$

863,317
623

$

-

$

863,940

Proportionate
Share 2016

Proportionate
Share 2015

0.1344475%
0.0055885%

0.1325309%
0.0257634%

Change
(Decrease)
0.0019166%
-0.0201749%

The net pension asset and liability was measured as of December 31, 2016, and the total pension liability
used to calculate the net pension asset and liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of January
1, 2016 and rolled-forward using generally accepted actuarial procedures. The proportion of the net pension
asset and liability is equal to the ratio of the employer’s actual contributions to the Systems during the plan
year over the total of all employer contributions to the System during the plan year.
For the year ended June 30, 2017 we recognized pension expense of $296,644.
At June 30, 2017 we reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources relating to
pensions from the following sources:
Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience

$

18,752

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources
$

24,013

Changes in assumptions

117,016

28,156

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension
plan investments

192,100

56,951

5,509

12,775

Changes in proportion and differences between contributions and
proportionate share of contributions
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date
Total

112,971
$
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446,348

$

121,895
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NOTE 12 RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)
$112,971 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions results from contributions made
by us prior to our fiscal year end, but subsequent to the measurement date of December 31, 2016.
These contributions will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the upcoming fiscal
year. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
Net Deferred Outflows
(inflows) of Resources

Year Ended December 31,
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
Thereafter

$

63,756
64,504
83,210
79
(17)
(47)

Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability in the December 31, 2016, actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:
Inflation
Salary increases
Investment rate of return

2.60 Percent
3.35 – 10.35 percent, average, including inflation
7.20 percent, net of pension plan investment expense,
including inflation

Mortality rates were developed from actual experience and mortality tables, based on gender, occupation
and age, as appropriate, with adjustments for future improvement in mortality based on Scale AA, a model
developed by the Society of Actuaries.
The actuarial assumptions used in the January 1, 2016 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the five year period ending December 31, 2013.
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which the best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and
best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the table on
the following page:
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Expected Return Arithmetic Basis
Long-Term
Real Return
expected
Target
Arithmetic
portfolio real
Allocation
Basis
rate of return
40%
7.06%
2.82%
20%
0.80%
0.16%
13%
5.10%
0.66%
9%
11.30%
1.02%
18%
3.15%
0.57%
0%
0.00%
0.00%
100%
5.23%
Inflation
2.60%
Expected arithmetic nominal return
7.83%

Asset Class
Equity securities
Debt securities
Real assets
Private equity
Absolute return
Cash and cash equivalents
Totals

The 7.20% assumed investment rate of return is comprised of an inflation rate of 2.60%, a real return of
4.60% that is net of investment expense.
Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.20 percent. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the current
contribution rate and that contributions from all participating employers will be made at contractually
required rates that are actuarially determined and certified by the URS Board. Based on those assumptions,
the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on
pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total
pension liability. The discount rate does not use the Municipal Bond Index Rate. The discount rate was
reduced to 7.20 percent from 7.50 percent from the prior measurement period.
Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Asset and Liability to Changes in the Discount
Rate
The following presents the proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount
rate of 7.50 percent as well as what the proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.20 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher
(8.20 percent) than the current rate:
1% Decrease
(6.20%)

System
Noncontributory System
Tier 2 Public Employees System
Total

Discount Rate
(7.20%)

1% Increase
(8.20%)

$

1,788,223
4,243

$

863,317
623

$

91,534
(2,130)

$

1,792,466

$

863,940

$

89,404

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued
URS financial report.
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Defined Contribution Savings Plans
The Defined Contribution Savings Plans are administered by the Utah Retirement Systems Board and are
generally supplemental plans to the basic retirement benefits of the Retirement Systems, but may also be
used as a primary retirement plan. These plans are voluntary tax-advantaged retirement savings programs
authorized under sections 401(k), 457(b) and 408 of the Internal Revenue code. Detailed information
regarding plan provisions is available in the separately issued URS financial report.
Highland City participates in the following Defined Contribution Savings Plans with Utah Retirement
Systems:
 401(k) Plan
 457(b) Plan
 Roth IRA Plan
Employee and Employer contributions to the Utah Retirement Defined Contribution Savings Plans for
fiscal year ended June 30, were as follows:
2017
401(k) Plan
Employer Contributions
Employee Contributions

$

205,929
34,030

2016
$

194,213
28,645

2015
$

184,597
23,443

457 Plan
Employer Contributions
Employee Contributions

31
36,428

65
44,238

35,372

Roth IRA Plan
Employer Contributions
Employee Contributions

N/A
14,991

N/A
13,667

N/A
10,779

NOTE 13 COMMITMENTS AND AGREEMENTS
The City has commitments to reimburse developers related to the Town Center project in the aggregate
amount of $203,342, which will be ultimately resolved after exaction fees are received by the Towne
Center fund.
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HIGHLAND CITY
SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
UTAH RETIREMENT SYSTEMS
As of December 31, 2016
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

For the year ended December 31,

Proportion of
the net
pension
liability (asset)

Proportionate
share of the
net pension
liability (asset)

Proportionate
share of the
net pension
liability (asset)
as a
percentage of
its coveredemployee
payroll

Plan fiduciary
net position as
a percentage
of its coveredemployee
payroll

1,159,548

74.45%

87.3%

Coveredemployee
payroll

Noncontributory Retirement System
2016

0.1344475%

$

863,317

$

2015

0.1325309%

749,924

1,074,504

69.79%

87.8%

2014

0.1363938%

592,254

1,102,809

53.70%

90.2%

Tier 2 Public Employees Retirement System
2016

0.0055885%

45,830

1.36%

95.1%

2015

0.0257634%

$

623
(56)

$

166,425

-0.03%

100.2%

2014

0.0529626%

(1,605)

259,759

-0.62%

103.5%

* This schedule will be built out prospectively to show a 10-year history.
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SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
UTAH RETIREMENT SYSTEMS
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

As of fiscal year ended June 30,

Actuarial
Determined
Contributions

Contributions
in relation to
the
contractually
required
contribution

Contribution
deficiency
(excess)

$

$

$

Covered
payroll

Contributions
as a
percentage of
coveredemployee
payroll

Nontributory System
2017

1,127,891

18.47%

2016

208,321
203,435

208,321
203,435

-

$

1,101,435

18.47%

2015

196,026

196,026

-

1,061,320

18.47%

2014

201,281

201,281

-

1,164,149

17.29%

Tier 2 Public Employees System*
2017

85,288

14.91%

2016

$

12,716
15,233

$

12,716
15,233

$

-

$

102,166

14.91%

2015

32,860

32,860

-

219,947

14.94%

2014

29,672

29,672

-

212,094

13.99%

Tier 2 Public Employees DC Only System*
2017

182,652

6.69%

2016

$

12,219
10,842

$

12,219
10,842

$

-

$

162,056

6.69%

2015

4,872

4,872

-

72,506

6.72%

2014

561

561

-

10,060

5.58%

* Contributions in Tier 2 include an amortization rate to help fund the unfunded liabilities in the Tier 1 systems.
** This schedule will be built out prospectively to show a 10-year history. Contributions as a percentage of coveredpayroll may be different than the board certified rate due to rounding and other administrative issues.
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For the fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017
Changes in Assumptions:
The following actuarial assumption changes were adopted January 1, 2016. The assumed investment return
assumption was decreased from 7.50% to 7.20% and the assumed inflation rate was decreased from 2.75% to 2.60%.
With the decrease in the assumed rate of inflation, both the payroll growth and wage inflation assumptions were
decreased by 0.15% from the prior year's assumption.
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HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET – NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2017
S pecial Revenue

Capital Projects
Town Center
Northwest
Capital
Annexation
Projects

Open S pace
Trust
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:
Accounts

$

178,546

$

4,011
$

182,557

$

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities

$

37,788
15,902

$

53,690

Fund Balances:
Assigned
Unassigned
Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities and
Fund Balances

$

$

-

Total Assets

Total Liabilities

107,487

107,487

-

450,889

Total
Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds
$

$

$

-

450,889

-

736,922
4,011

$

740,933

$

37,788
15,902

-

53,690

128,867
-

107,487
-

450,889
-

687,243
-

128,867

107,487

450,889

687,243

182,557

$
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107,487

$

450,889

$

740,933

HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS – NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017
S pecial Revenue

Capital Projects
Town Center
Northwest
Capital
Annexation
Projects

Open S pace
Trust
Revenues:
Charges for services
Interest income

$

281,798
1,802

$

1,068

$

4,482

Total
Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds
$

281,798
7,352

Total Revenues

283,600

1,068

4,482

289,150

Expenditures:
Current:
General government

398,629

-

-

398,629

398,629

-

-

398,629

(115,029)

1,068

4,482

(109,479)

58,181
128,000

-

-

58,181
128,000

Total Other Financing S ources

186,181

-

-

186,181

Net Change in Fund Balances

71,152

1,068

4,482

76,702

57,715

106,419

446,407

610,541

Total Expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures
Other Financing S ources:
Sale of capital assets
Transfers in

Fund Balances, Beginning
Fund Balances, Ending

$

128,867

$
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107,487

$

450,889

$

687,243

SUPPLEMENTAL REPORTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
Highland City Corporation
Highland, Utah
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Highland City Corporation, Utah (the City), as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 14, 2017.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statement, we considered the City’s internal control over financial
reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose
of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
City’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit the
attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been
identified.
Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Telephone (801) 590-2600
Fax (801) 265-9405
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Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose.

Keddington & Christensen, LLC
Salt Lake City, Utah
December 14, 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
AS REQUIRED BY THE STATE COMPLIANCE AUDIT GUIDE

Honorable Mayor and
Members of City Council
Highland City Corporation
Highland, Utah
Report on Compliance with General State Compliance Requirements
We have audited Highland City, Utah (the City) compliance with the following applicable general state compliance
requirements described in the State Compliance Audit Guide, issued by the Office of the Utah State Auditor, for the
year ended June 30, 2017.
General state compliance requirements were tested for the year ended June 30, 2017 in the following areas:
Budgetary Compliance
Fund Balance
Justice Courts
Utah Retirement System
Restricted Taxes and Related Revenues
Open and Public Meetings Act
Treasurer’s Bond
Cash Management
Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the state requirements referred to above.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City’s compliance based on our audit of the state compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the State Compliance Audit Guide.
Those standards and the State Compliance Audit Guide require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on a state compliance requirement occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
about the City’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each state compliance
requirement referred to above. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City’s compliance
with those requirements.
Opinion on General State Compliance Requirements
In our opinion, Highland City, Utah complied, in all material respects, with the state compliance requirements referred
to above for the year ended June 30, 2017.

Telephone (801) 590-2600
Fax (801) 265-9405

53

1455 West 2200 South, Suite 201
Salt Lake City, Utah 84119

Other Matters
The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are required to be reported in
accordance with the State Compliance Audit Guide and which are described in the Schedule of Findings and
Recommendations as items 2017-1, and 2017-2. Our opinion on compliance is not modified with respect to these
matters.
The City’s responses to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit is included in the accompanying Schedule
of Findings and Recommendations. The City’s responses were not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of compliance, and accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses.
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance
with the compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we
considered the City’s internal control over compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above to
determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance with those state compliance requirements and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the State Compliance Audit Guide, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the City’s internal control over compliance.
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and
correct noncompliance with a state compliance requirement on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control
over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there
is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a state compliance requirement will not be prevented or
detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a state compliance requirement that is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control and compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the State Compliance Audit Guide.
Accordingly this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Keddington & Christensen, LLC
Salt Lake City, Utah
December 14, 2017
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STATE COMPLIANCE FINDINGS
2017-1. Open and Public Meetings Act – Significant Deficiency
Finding
During State Compliance testing, we noted that the City provided sufficient notice for the tentative budget
hearing, however, the City did not provide notice of the final adopted budget for the fiscal 2016-2017 year.
Utah Code Annotated 10-6-113 states “notice of the public hearing be published at least seven days prior to
the hearing.” This instance of noncompliance appears to be an oversight.
Recommendation
We recommend that the City properly notice public hearings for budget adoption.
City Response
Chapter 6, entitled Uniform Fiscal Procedures Act for Utah Cities sections 10-6-113 and 10-6-114 refer to
having a public hearing in regards to the tentative budget and providing the proper notice for such hearing.
It is not clear that the public hearing or notice requirement pertain to the adoption of the final budget. The
State Compliance Audit Guide in Chapter 1.H.3 does ask the auditors to “ensure that the entity provided the
required notice for its original and final budget adoption hearing by reviewing the certified copy of the
notice.” Highland did provide the proper notice for the tentative budget but only provided a notice in the
required newspaper for the adoption of the final budget. Therefore, according to the State Compliance Audit
Guide, Highland has an audit deficiency. If the Audit Guide is the ultimate arbiter as to whether there is a
deficiency, then, for the budget of Fiscal Year 2018-2019, Highland will do its best to comply with this
requirement.
2017-2. Fund Balance Limitations – Significant Deficiency
Finding
Utah Code 10-6-116(2) states that “the accumulation of a fund balance in the city general fund may not
exceed 25% of the total revenue of the city general fund for the current fiscal period.” During test work for
state compliance it was noted that the City’s General Fund balance was approximately 29% of general fund
revenues, which is over the maximum amount allowed by $360,566.
A similar finding was noted in the previous year.
Recommendation
We recommend that the City monitor more closely the unrestricted fund balance of the General Fund to
comply with the fund balance limitations outlined in the Utah Code.
City Response
The unrestricted fund balance in the City’s general fund was 28.9% of the total revenue in the general fund.
The City will monitor this more closely in Fiscal Year 2018 to ensure that they don’t exceed the 25% level.
The city has already allocated $327,000 for the purchase of two snow plows that will help in not exceeding
the 25% level in the Fiscal Year 2018 budget.
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Agenda
 Government‐wide Statements vs. Fund‐level Statements
 Fund Balance vs. Cash
 25% General Fund Balance Rule

Keddington & Christensen, LLC

Government-Wide vs. Fund-Level

Fund-Level Statements: Governmental

 Why two types of statements?
 Both show the operations of the City, but with different focuses.
 Helps to show information Citizens are most likely concerned with, as well
as additional information that bonding or other rating agencies may be
more concerned with.

 These funds consist of Governmental and Proprietary Funds
 Governmental Funds (pages 15 and 17 of FY17 audit report):





Generally more useful for residents
Primarily supported by taxes, grants, and similar revenue sources
Use Modified Accrual basis of accounting – which is focused on “availability” of
cash/resources. “What funds/resources are available to cover costs?”
Revenues are recorded when “available” (generally received within 60 days), and
measurable (you know what the amount is/you’re owed it)
 Property taxes received WITHIN 60 days of year‐end are booked as a receivable and
show as revenue.
 Property taxes received AFTER 60 days of year‐end, even if it relates to the fiscal
year, are not considered revenue.

Fund-Level Statements: Governmental

Fund-Level Statements: Governmental

 Governmental Funds (continued):
 Expenditures are recognized when a liability (promise to pay) is incurred
 EXCEPT FOR:

 A few examples:
 Capital asset purchase?





Unmatured Debt
Accrued Interest
Liabilities not expected to be paid within a year

 You can think of governmental funds as being on a more or less Cash

Basis.
 There are no long‐term assets or liabilities recorded in governmental funds




Current period expense

 Debt payment made?


Current period expense

 Payout of vacation or compensated absences?


Current period expense

 Issue new debt?


Current period revenue (other financing source)

No capital assets, long‐term debt, compensated absences, etc.
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Fund-Level Statements: Proprietary

Government-Wide

 Proprietary funds are used to account for activities that receive

 This is all of the fund‐level information on a Full Accrual basis of

significant support from fees and charges (pages 20‐23).
 “Are the fees designed to cover the costs of providing the service?”

 Use the Full Accrual basis of accounting:
 Revenues are recorded when earned (regardless of when collected)
 Expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred
 Capital assets, long‐term debt, compensated absences, etc. are recorded
when incurred purchased
 Essentially the same as you would see in a regular company’s financial

statements.

accounting (pages 12‐14 in the FY17 audit report):
 Proprietary Fund information (“Business‐type Activities”) is unchanged

from the fund level to Gov’t‐wide as it’s already on the full accrual basis.
 Governmental Funds are adjusted (converted) to show all those long‐term

items that were specifically excluded (capital assets, compensated
absences, long‐term debt, etc.) and their effects on the City.


Shows what the Governmental Funds would be if at Full Accrual basis

 The Balance Sheet shows information separated by Governmental and

Business‐type Activities.
 No budgeting at the Government‐Wide Level (yay!)

Compensated Absences

Compensated Absences

 Because compensated absences is a long‐term liability, it is tracked by

 If the employee’s wages are allocated to a governmental fund, that

the City, but it is not recorded in the governmental funds, but the
portion related to proprietary funds, is tracked and recorded in those
funds.
 This makes it a little complicated when an employee retires or
otherwise cashes out compensated absence amounts…

proportion of compensated absences paid out will show as an expense
in that/those funds, therefore you need to budget that payout as an
EXPENSE of the fund.
 As this will impact the budget, a budget amendment may be necessary.
 If the employee’s wages are allocated to a proprietary/enterprise fund,
that proportion of any payout of compensated absences will simply
reduce the liability and will NOT show up as a current period expense.

Compensated Absences - Example

Compensated Absences - Example

 Employee A:
 Expected to retire October 1, 20XX
 At date of retirement is expected to have 250 hours of Sick, and 100 hours
of vacation
 Hourly wage at date of retirement: $30.00
 Wages allocated 80% General Fund, 5% each Sewer, P.I., Water, and Storm
Sewer.
 Current policy for retiring employees:

 When cashing out, it would impact the funds as follows:




50% of Sick Hours can be converted (cashed out) – 125 hours
All vacation hours can be converted (cashed out) – 100 hours

 225 hours x $30 = $6,750 total payout
GOV’TAL
General Fund
(80%)

PROPRIETARY (BUSINESS‐TYPE) FUNDS
Sewer
(5%)

Pressurized
Irrigation (5%)

Water (5%)

Storm
Sewer
(5%)

TOTAL
(100%)

Cash

$5,400.00

$337.50

$337.50

$337.50

$337.50

$6,750

Comp. Absence
(L.T. LIABILITY)

N/A

$337.50

$337.50

$337.50

$337.50

$1,350

Benefit EXPENSE

$5,400.00

N/A

N/A

$5,400

N/A

N/A
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Cash vs. Fund Balance

Cash vs. Fund Balance (continued)

 Cash and Fund Balance can sometimes equal, but are NOT the same.

 Fund balance is a helpful guide to see the health of the fund:
 Increasing – means the fund is collecting more revenues than it is
expending
 Decreasing – means the fund is spending more than the funding it is
receiving
 Watch both Cash balances AND Fund balances
 Plenty of fund balance does NOT mean you have cash
 Cash, likewise does NOT mean you have fund balance

 Fund Balance is the cumulative effect of revenues and expenditures

over the life of the fund.
 Similar to retained earnings or equity in a normal company.
 The primary difference between Cash and Fund Balance is the other

items on the balance sheet (receivables, prepaids, payables, etc.)
 “Receivables” represent cash we haven’t received yet
 “Prepaids” represent cash we paid out, but can’t recognize as expense yet
 “Payables” represent a promise to pay cash

Cash vs. Fund Balance - Example
6/30/201X

Example 1

Example 2

Example 3

Example 4

Balance Sheet
Cash

$

Receivables

$

500

$

17,000

5,000

21,200

$

0

21,700

21,700

21,700

17,000

4,700

24,700

4,700

0

5,000

Total Assets
Payables
Fund Balance

16,700

$

17,000

$

16,700

$

(3,000)

$

5,000

$ (15,000)

$

12,000

12,000

17,000

$

5,000

$

Cash vs. Fund Balance - Example
 In the summarized examples, the ONLY time cash = fund balance is

when there are no other balance sheet items.
 Also, note that a large net loss in one period can put fund balance at

below ‐0‐, even though there is plenty of cash at year‐end.
 FYI – Fund Balance and Net Position are essentially the same thing

17,000

Income Statement
Net Income (loss)

$

Fund Balance, Beg.
Fund Balance, End.

$

17,000

$

(3,000)

12,000
$

17,000

5,000
12,000

$

17,000

Fund Balance
 Fund Balance is separated into up to 5 main categories:
 Nonspendable (generally = prepaid expenses)
 Restricted (related to any restricted cash – donations, impact fees, etc.)


Restricted is typically due to spending restrictions from outside parties

 Committed – set by City council using highest level of decision‐making

and remains until removed in the same manner (ordinance, for example)
 Assigned – “earmarked” for specific purpose, for example “debt service”


City council can “assign” fund balance, but this is often delegated to management

 Unassigned (all other fund balance that is “available” resources for use of

gov’t‐Remember, this does not mean there is Cash to spend)

Fund Balance Limits
 For the General Fund only:
 Unrestricted fund balance can not exceed 25% of General Fund revenues


“Unrestricted” is defined as “committed, assigned, and unassigned”)

 Fund balance in total must be at least 5% of general fund revenues
 This requirement has not been specifically tested for several years, but is still a requirement
of all General Funds.

 Why are there limits?
 The concept is, if you accumulate too much fund balance, you have over‐charged
taxes, fees, etc.
 HOWEVER, larger projects can take several years to save up for if the City doesn’t
want to bond for it, therefore there are times when accumulating fund balance
makes sense and is perfectly reasonable.
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Fund Balance Limit Calculations

Fund Balance Limit Calculations

 First we need to figure out what our “Unrestricted Fund Balance” is…
 This is calculated by taking the total fund balance (including the close‐

out of net income), then backing out any “Nonspendable” and
“Restricted” amounts.
 What is left is the “Unrestricted Fund Balance” – example on the next
page

6/30/201X
Fund Balance:
Nonspendable

$

5,000 (prepaid expenses)

Restricted

25,000 (impact fees, unspent donations, etc.)

Committed

30,000 (formally set aside for a new park)

Assigned

12,000 (set aside for debt service, or capital projects)

Unassigned

85,000 (remainder of fund balance that is “available”)

Total Fund Balance

$

157,000

Calculate “Unrestricted”

$

127,000 (Total Fund Balance – Nonspendable and Restricted, OR
Committed + Assigned + Unassigned)

Fund Balance Limit Calculations

Fund Balance Limit Calculations

 A few examples:

 Fund balance levels by percent:

General Fund Revenues

Example 1

Example 2

$

$

500,000

Unrestricted Fund Balance limit

$

125,000

Unrestricted Fund Balance (previous slide)

$

Under (Over) the Limit

$

600,000

25%

20%

15%

10%

General Fund Revenues

Based on June 30, 2017

$ 9,143,210

$ 9,143,210

$ 9,143,210

$ 9,143,210

x 25%

x 20%

x 15%

Unrestricted Fund Balance

$ 2,285,803

$ 1,828,642

$ 1,371,482

x 25%

x 25%
$

150,000

127,000

$

127,000

(2,000)

$

23,000

5%
$ 9,143,210

x 10%
$

914,321

x 5%
$

457,161

Fund Balance Limit Issues

Fund Balance Limit Options

 The calculation is easy – but knowing what the fund balance will be is

 Monitor more closely the fund balance throughout the year, and, make

typically not known until well after FYE.
 Payables, receivables, and other accruals can be estimated, but if significant

unanticipated receivables come in, that can put you over the fund balance
limitation.
 Which means, you generally don’t have enough information to make any
budget amendment transfer decisions.

 What are your options?

budget amendments for transfers to capital projects funds as necessary.
 Unless the Council wishes to keep a minimum “Unrestricted” fund

balance, there are still possibilities of going over the limit once receivables
are pulled back.

 Some entities have passed with their budgets a more open‐ended

transfer wording which in essence states:
 “We approve any transfer to Capital projects fund (or other similar fund)

in an amount necessary to ensure we are below the 25% Unrestricted
General Fund balance limitation”


I’m not an attorney and you are responsible for complying with all laws and
requirements, so verify with your legal counsel before proceeding.
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Fund Balance Limit – Other Cities
 I can’t say what level of fund balance is “good” or “bad” since it all

depends upon what the goals and vision for the City is.
 For example, if the goal/vision of the City is to invest heavily in

infrastructure, having too much fund balance means you’re not following
the goal/vision.

 Only the City can decide what level of fund balance is good, but it can

Fund Balance Limit – Other Cities
As of 6/30/2017

Highland City

Cedar
Hills

Alpine City

Lehi City

American
Fork

Total General Fund Balance

$ 2,653,796

$

994,397

$ 1,832,032

$

6,293,553

$

4,054,669

Unrestricted portion

$ 2,646,368

$

967,634

$

$

5,789,324

$

3,688,156

Unrestricted % of GF Rev.

947,253

28.9%

21.7%

17.1%

14.6%

15.6%

General Fund Revenues

$ 9,143,210

$ 4,468,735

$ 5,535,338

$ 39,755,758

$ 23,598,542

x 25%

x 25%

x 25%

x 25%

Fund Balance Limitation

$ 2,285,803

$ 1,117,184

$ 1,383,835

$ 9,938,940

$ 5,899,636

Under (Over) Limitation

$ (360,566)

$

$

4,149,616

$ 2,211,480

be helpful to see what other cities fund balance levels are.

149,550

436,582 $

x 25%

Any questions?
If any questions come up during the year, please feel free to reach out to
me! I would be happy help provide additional training or clarification!
Steven Rowley, CPA
Partner
Keddington & Christensen, LLC
Steve@KCcpaoffice.com
(801) 590‐2600
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